
B892',70(Ð

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Legal Reference : (continued)
ATTONUEY GENEN¿L OPINIONS
92 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 26 (2009)
92 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. l9 (2009)
89 Opg Cøl.Atn.Gen. 2 I 7 (2006)
86 Ops. Cal.Atty. Gen. I 3 I (2 00 3)
8 5 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002)
82 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 83 (1 999)
8 1 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1 998)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)
69 Ops.Cøl.Atn.Gen. 2 5 5 (1 986)
68 Ops.Cal.Auy.Gen. 171 (1985)
65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 ( I 982)
6 3 Ops. Cal.Attv. Gen. 8 6 I ( I 980)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members, Føct Sheet, July 2010
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS

Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Offìcials' Oblisations Under the Conflict-of-Interest Rules, 2005
INSTIruTE FOR T.OCAT. GO .I/E 

RNME NT P UB LI CATI ON S
Undet'standing the Basics of Public Seruice Ethics: Personal Financiql Gain Laws, 2009
UnderstandinÊ the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparencv Laws.2009
WEB SITES
CSBA : http : //www.csba.org
Føir Political Practices C ommissio n : http : //unnu.fppc. c q. gov
Ins titute of Lo c al G ov ernm ent : ht tp : //vttww. c a -il g. o r g

Bylaw HAMILTON IJNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 69 af L22

13s



adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia
Board Bylaws 89270(a)

CONFI.ICT OF INTEREST

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Govemment Code 87300-87313, requires each public agency in California to

adopt a conflict ofinterest code; and

'V/ifb:REAS, the Governing Boarci of the liamäton Unifieci Schooi Disttici has previously adopieda iocai confiict of
interest code; and

WHEREAS, past and fi:ture amendrnents to the Poiiticai Reform Act and implementins regulations may require

conforming amendments to be made to the district's conflict of interest code; and

WH!,RþAli, a regulatron adopted by the lalr Pohtrcal Practrces Commlsslon, 2 CCR 1E730, provrdes that

incorporation by ieference of the terms of that regulation, along with an agency-specific appendix designating
positions and disclosure categories shall constitute the adoption and amendment of a conflict of ínterest code in

conformance with Government Code 873Û0 and 87306; and

WHEREAS, the Hamilton Unified School District has recentþ reviewed its positions, and the duties of each

position, and has deteímined *at (changss/na changes) tc ihe cuÍîefit ccnflict of inlerssi code âre necessary; and

WHEREAS, any earlier resolutions, bylaws, and/or appendices containing the district's conflict of interest code shall
he reseinded rn¡{ srrnercede¡l hv this resohrtion anrt Annendix: and

--'J ----- --'

NOW I ¡{ëR13FOI€ BE IT RESOLVED tirar tire Hamüron u-nified Sehsoi Disirisi; Governing äoarti atitrpis üre

following Conflict of Interest Code including its Appendix of Designated Employees and Disclosure Categories.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS day of at a meeting, by the following vote

AYES NOES ABSENT:-

Attest:

Secretaryl?resident

136

Page 70 of 122



F'e270(b)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Conflict of Interest Code of the
Hamilton UnifÌed School District

The provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission,
together with the attached Appendix speciffing designated positions and disclosure categories, are incorporated by
reference and shall constitute the district's conflict of interest code.

Governing Board members and designated employees shall file a Statement of Economic InteresVForm 700 in
accordance with the discloswe categories listed in the attached Appendix. The Statement of Economic Interest shall
be filed with the district's filing officer and/or, if so required, with the district's code reviewing body. The district's
filing officer shall make the statements available for public review and inspection.

APPENDIX

Disclosure Categories

l. Category l: A person desigaated Category I shall disclose:

Interests in real properly located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within two miles
ofdistrict boundaries, or ofany land owned or used by the district.

Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are engaged in the acquisition
or disposal ofreal property within the district, are contractors or subcontractors which are or have
been within the past two years engaged in work or services of the type used by the dishict, or
manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the district.

2. Category 2: A person designated Category 2 shall disclose:

Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are contractors or
subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used by the department which the
designated person manages or directs.

Investments or business positions in or income from sources which manufacture or sell supplies,
books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the department which the designated person
manages or directs. For the purposes of this category, a principal's departrnent is his/her entire
school.

a.

b.

a.

b

PageTt of t22

L37



E 9270(c)

CONFLICT OF INTER.EST (continued)

IJ Full Disclosure: Because it has been determined that the district's Board members and/or Superintendent
"manage public investments," they and other persons designated for "full disclosure" shall disclose, in
accordançe with Government Code 87200:

4. Interests in real propefy located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within iwo miles
ofdistrict boundaries, or ofany land cwned or used by the diskict.

b Investments, business positions, and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel
payments.

Designated Positions

Desienated Position Discloswe Category

Goveming Board Members
Superintendent of Schoois
Assistant/Associate Superintendent
Pwchasing Agent
Director
Prinoipal
Assistant Principal
I\,l^:-r^-^-^^ ^-l aì*^*^+:^-. Tl:--^r^-fYr4u¡Lwrr@ww 4r¡g vyll4uuuù v[!!Lvt

Program Coordinator
Project Specialist
Supervisor
Dean of Students
Business Manager

Disclosures for Consultants

Consultants are designated employees who mrrst disciose financial interests as detormined on a case-by-case basis
by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee's written determination shall include a
description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements based upon that
description. All such determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this
confl ict of interest code.

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a governmental decision whether
to: (2 CCR 18701)

1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation

2. Adopt or enforce a law

I
I
I
I
2
2
2
1

2
2
2
)
,)

138

Page72 af L22



-t

8e270(d)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Issue, deny, suspend, orrevoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar
authorization or entitlement

Authorize the district to enter into, modi$r, or renev/ a contract that requires district approval

Grant district approval to a contract that requires district approval and in which the district is a parfy, or to
the specifications for such a contract

6. Grant disrict approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item

7. Adopt or grant district approval ofdistrict policies, standards, or guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staffcapacity with the
district and in that capacþ participates in making a governmental decision as defined in 2 CCR 18702.2 or performs
the same or substantially all the same duties for the district that would otherwise be performed by an individual
holding a position specified in the district's conflict of interest code. (2 CCR 18701)

EXhibit IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: Hamilton City, California

4

5

Page73 of L22

139



Board Bylaws

BOARD POLICIES

BB 9310(a)

The Governing Board shall adopt written policies to convey its expectations for actions that will be taken in the
district, clarifr roles and responsibilities of the Board and Superintendent, and communicate Board philosophy and
positions to the students, staff; parents/guardians and the community. Board policies are binding on the district to
the extent that they do not conflict with federal or state law ancl are consistent with the district's collective
bargaining agfeements.

(c¡. tt1t - Vision)
(cf, 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a policy manual that is up to date and retlects tl-re mandates of
law. Policies shall be regularly reviewed at a time allocated for this purpose on the agenda of public Board
meetings.

(cf, 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf, 9322 - Agendas/Meeting Møterials)

TheBoardshallreviewcertainpoliciesannually,asrequiredbyEducationCode35160.5. Ifnorevisionsare
deemed necessary, the Board minutes stiaii nevertheless indicate that the review was conducted. ûther policies shall
be monitored and reviewed as specified in the policy itself or as needed to refleci changes in law or district
circumstances.

(cf. 5 1 I 6. 1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(c¡. tii+5 - Extracurmcuiar ancÌ CocrtrcrcuÌar ActrÉrcs)

Policy Development and Adoption Process

The district's policy development process shall include the following basic steps:

The Board andlor Superintendent or designee shall identiff the need for a new policy orrevision ofan
existing policy. The need may arise from a change in law, a new district vision or goals, educational
research or trends, or a change in the superintendency or Board membership. The need may also occw as a

result ofan incident that has arisen in the district or a recoÍrmendation or request from staffor other
interested persons.

As needed, the Superintendent or designee shall gather fiscal a¡rd other data, staffand public input, related
district policies, sample policies from other organizations or agencies, and other useful information to fully
infonn the Board about the issue.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

I

2

140

Page70 of t22



J

BB e310(b)

BOARD POLICIES (continued)

The Board may hold discussions during a public Board meeting to gain an understanding of the issue and
provide initial direction to the Superintendent or designee- The discussion may include, but not be limited
to, how the proposed policy may affect student leaming, community expectations, staff recommendations,
fiscal impact, as'trell as the policy's impact on governance and operational efficiency.

The Board or Superintendent may request that legal counsel review the draft policy as appropriate.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present a draft policy for a first reading at a public Board
meeting. At its second reading, the Board may take action on the proposed policy. The Board may waive
the second reading or may require an additional reading if necessary.

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Only policies formally adopted by a majority vote of the Board shall constitute official Board policy.

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

The district's policy development process may be revised or expanded as needed based on the issue being
considered, the need for more information, or to provide greater opportunities for consultation and public input.

Policies shall become effective upon Board adoption or at a future date designated by the Board at the time of
adoption.

Board Bylaws

The Board shall prescribe and enforce des for its own government consistent with state law and regulations.
(Education Code 35010)

Bylaws governing Board operations may be developed, adopted, and amended following the same procedures as
those used for the adoption or amendment of Board policy.

Administrative Regulations

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for developing and enforcing administrative regulations for the
operation of the district. Administrative regulations shall be consistent with law and Board policy and shall be
designed to promote the achievement of

4

5

Page 75 of L22

I4I



BB 9310(c)

BOARI) POLICIES (continued)

district goals and objectives. Administrative regulations may describe specific actions to be taken, roles and
responsibilities of staff, timelines, and/or other necessary provisions. The Superintendent or designee also may
develop procedwes manuals, handbooks, or other guides to carry out the intent of Board policy.

When Board policies are amended, the Superintendent or designee shall review corresponding regulations to ensrüe
that they conform to the intent of the revised policy. In case of conflict belween administrative regulation and Board
noiicy, poiicy shall prevaii.

The Board may review and/or approve regulations for the purpose of ensuring confomity with the intent of BoarC
pciicy.

Monitoring and Evaluafion

At the time a policy is adopted, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall determine whether an evaluation of
the policy should be scheduled and, if so, shall agree upon a timeline and measures for evaluating the effectiveness
of the policy in achieving its purpose.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)

Access to Policies

The Superintendent or designee shall enswe that all distriet omplc.vees and the putrlíe have aeecss to an up-to-date
district policy manual. A public copy of the policy manual shall be maintained at the district central offtce and at
each schsoi site. These eopies shaii be maintaineci either eieerronicaüy or by paper eopy.

(cf. I 1 1 3 - District and School Wreb Sites)
(cJ. 1340 - Access to District Records)

As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall notifli staff, parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders
whenever a policy that affects them is adopted or revised. He/she may determine the appropriate communications
strategy depending on the issue.

(cf 1112 - Media Relations)
(cf 4 1 I 2. 9/42 I 2. 9/4 3 I 2.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notffications)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Suspension of Policies

No Board policy, bylaw, or adminiskative regulation, or any portion thereof, shall be operative if it is found to be in
conflict with applicable federal or state law or regulations or court decisions. Ifany porlion ofa policy is found to be
invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other provisions ofthe policy.

L42

Page 76 of t22



BB 9310(d)

BOARD POLICIES (continued)

(cf. 2210 - Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
35010 Control ofdistrict; prescrìption and enforcement ofrules
3 5 I 60 Authorìty of governing boards
3 5 1 60. 5 Annual review of school district policies
35163 Official actions, rninutes and journal
3 5 I 64 Vote requirements

Mønøgement Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Targeting Student Learning: The School Board's Role øs Policymaker, 2005
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Policv, 1996
WEB STTES
CSBA, Policy Services, includíng Policy Update Service, Governance and Management Using Technology
(GAMUT Onlinew), Policy Audit Program, Individual District Policy Workshops, Agenda Online, and
Manual Møintenance : http : //www. csba.org/ps
National School Boards Associatìon: http: //www.nsba.org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, California

Page77 ol t22

L43



Board Bylaws

MEETINGS AND NOTTCES

BB 9320(a)

Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishíng district business. In accordance
with state open meeting laws @rown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall conduct closed
sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law. To encourage community involvement in the schools,
Board meetings shall provide oppottunities fot questions ancl comments by members of the public. All meetings
shall be conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations.

(cf 932 Ì . eioseri Session Purpo:ses and Ágendas)
(cf. 932i.i - Ciosed Session Actions and Reports)
(cf 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 932j - Meeting Conduct)

A Board meeting exists whenever a majorify of Board members gather at the same time and place to hear, discuss,
or cieltberate upon any item wlthrn the subJect matter.¡unsdrctlon of fhe tsoard or distnct. {Govemment Code
s49s2.2)

A majorily of thc Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of commwrications of any kind,
directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. However, an employee or district official may engage in separate conversations with
Bcard members in order to answei questians or pro.,ride information regarding an itein .witirin the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not communicate the comments or
position of any Board members to other Board members. (Government Code 54952.2)

(cf.9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications)

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetíngs, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in accordance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Govemment Code 54953.2,54954.1)

Regular Meetings

The Board shall hold one regular meeting each month. Regular meetings shall be held at 6:00 p.m. on the fourth
W'ednesday at the Hamilton High School Library.

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to
members of the public and on the district's Internet web site. (Govemment Code 54954.2)

(cf. I113 - Dtstrict and School lleb Sites)

L44

Page 78 ot L22



BB e320(b)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES (continued)

Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less than 72
hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public inspection at
a public office or location designated for that purpose. (Govemment Code 54957.5)

(cf. 13a0 - Access to District Records)

Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board
members. However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other
compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in
Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956)

(cf 2I2I - Superintendent's Contract)

Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members and the
local media who have requested such notice in writing. The notice also shall be posted on the district's Internet web
site. The notice shall be received at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting. The notice shall also be posted at
least24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public. The notice shall speciff the time and
place of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at this
meeting. (Education Code35144¡' Govemment Code 54956)

Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing a
written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time it
convenes. (Government Code 54956)

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directþ address the
Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's consideration.
(Government Code 54954.3)

Emergency Meetings

In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened
disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice
and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pwsuant to Government Code 54956. The Board shall
comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. (Government Code 54956.5)

Page79 at t22

145



z.

BB 9320(c)

MEETINGS A1l[D NOTICES (continued)

An emergency situøtion means either of the following: (Govemment Code 54956.5)

An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely
impairs public health and/or safety as deterníned by a majodty of the members of the Board

(cf 4 I 4 l. 6/42 4 I . 6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppøge)

A dire emergency, which shali be ciefined as a crippiing disasier, mass cíesftuciion, terrorist activiiy, or
threatened terrorist act that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide
ons-hour notice before holding an emergency meeiing may endanger the public health andlor safeiy as

deterniued by a majority of the merubers rrf the Board

(eJ. JJ t O - Lmergencrcs ana ußasrcr rrepctreclness rtanl

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency meeting
by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of special meetings.
Aii telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification must be exhausted. If
telephone services are not functioning, thc notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting
as possible, the Board shall nctify thcse media representatives cf ¿he mee*ng and shail desrjribe the purpose af tlre
meeting and any action taken by the Board. fl the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall
give such notice at or near the time he/she notifies the other members of the Board about the meeting. (Government
Code 54956.5)

T'L^ 
-:--,¿^- ^f ¿L^ 

-^^a:- - ^ t:^. ^f -^-^^..^ +L^ D^^-l --^^il^-+ ^- ,1^-:-^^ -^+:C2^Å ^- ^a^^-t^Â +^ -^+:€,r u! luuutçù ut ut! uçul,uÉ, 4 ¡¡ùt ur Pvrùvuù uv Du4u Pr!ùruv¡lL ul uvarË[g! ¡rvtulvu u¡ 4ltçruPtlu Lv ¡rvL4t, q vuPJ

ofthe roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public place as soon
after the meeting as possible. (Govenrment Code 54956.5)

Adj ourned/Continued Meetings

A majority vote by the Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and place that
shall be specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjoum such a meeting. If no
Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a later time and shall
give notice in the same manner required for special meetings. (Government Code 54955)

Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of adjournmenlcontinuance shall be
conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held. (Govemment Code 54955)

L46

Page 80 of t22



BB 9320(d)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES (continued)

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings

The Board may occasionally convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to receive
information from staff or feedback from members of the public.

The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships.

(cf. 2000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 2 I 1 I - Superintendent Governance Standards)
(cf, 9000 - RoIe of the Board)
(cf, 9005 - Governance Støndards)
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation)

Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quomm of the Board is attending a study session, retreat,
public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with the Brown Act and shall be held in open
session and within dishict boundaries. Action items shall not be included on the agenda for these meetings.

Other Gatherings

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act provided
that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific dishict business among themselves other than as part
of the scheduled program: (Government Code 54952.2)

A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general
interest to the public or to school board members

A:r open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization othsr than the district to address a topic
of local community concern

An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district

An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency

A purely social or ceremonial occasion

An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board members who
are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers

(cf. 9130 - Board Committees)

2.

J.

4.

5.

6

Page 81 ofL22

L47



I

BB 9320(e)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES (continued)

Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to the Brown
Act. (Government Code 54952.2)

Location of Meetings

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry or any

tharacteristic listsd in ûovelnment Code i 1i35, incfuding, butnot limited to, religion, sex,.or sexual orientation. in
acíciiiion, meetings shaii noi be heié in a faciiiry which is inaccessibie io individuais with disabiiities or where

members of the public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted. (Govenrment Code 54961)

(cf. 1ilA - Nondiscríminulion ín District Programs ãnd Activittes)

ivíeerings shaii'oe ileiri widrin district boundaries" except to do any of rire foiiowing: (Government Corie 54954)

Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to which
the district is a party

Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that the

topic of the *eeting is liæited io items directly related to ihe prop@

Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held within
one of the other agencies'boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law

rr,f^^+ :- +L^ ^'l^.-.+ --^r:-^ €-^il;fr' if +L- ,lio+ri¡+ hoo ¡n mppfina fon.ilit¡¡ r¡¡ifhin ifs hnrrn¡lqriec nr if ifstv¡lwl ur

principal office is located outside the district

Meet with elected or appoiuted state or federal officials when a local mccting would be impractical, solely

to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials have
jurisdiction

Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting agenda

is limited to items directly related to that facility

Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so

would reduce legal fees or costs

8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques

2.

J

1

5

6.

7

L48

Page 82 of t22



9

BB 9320(Ð

MEETINGS AND NOTICES (continued)

Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for
Superintendent of the district

10. Interview a potential employee from another district

Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #i-10 above, shall still be subject to the
notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of the Board attends the
meeting.

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe, meetings shall be held for
the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so inform all news
media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid available means of communication.
(Government Code 54954)

Teleconferencing

A teleconference is a meeting of the Board in which Board members are in different locations, connected by
electronic means through audio and/or video. (Govemment Code 54953)

The Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the Board's subject
matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call, (Govemment Code 54953)

During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the members of the Board shall participate from locations within
district boundaries. (Government Code 54953)

Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are
posted elsewhere. Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the public. (Government Code 54953)

All telcconference locations shall be accessible to the public. Al1 teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the Board,
including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location. (Government Code
s4es3)

All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are teleconferenced.
The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the meeting at each teleconference location.

Legøl Reference: (see nextpage)

Page 83 of L22

L49



BB 9320(9)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES (continued)
Legal Reference:

EDUCATIONCODE
35140 Time and place of meetings
35143 Annuøl organizational meeting, date, and notice
35144 Special meeting
35145 Public meetings
3 5 1 4 5. 5 Agenda ; pultlic ¡tarticipatio n; regululiuns
35146 Closed sessions

3 5 1 47 Open meeting law exceptions and applications
GO',¡'ERN\z/IEMF etDE
35 Ì i. Í Locøí agency execuiives
11135 State programs and activities, discrimination
54ç50-54963 The Ralph M. Broutn Act, especialþt:

54953 luleetings tu be upen untl p'uhlic; ullendunt:e
54954 Time and place of regalar meetings

54954.2 Àgenda posting requirements, board actions
54956 Special meetings; cøll; notice
5495 6. 5 Emergency meetings
WTTED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilíties Act
CODE OF FEDERIL AUGULATIONS, TTTLE 28
i 5. i 6t Effective cat*wunicetians
36-303 Awcíliary aids and services
COURT DECISIONS
Wolfe v Cin of Fremont, (2006) 144 Cal.App. 544
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
88 Ctps.Cai.Atw.Gen. 2¡8 (2Ûû5)

84 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. i,81 (2001)

84 Ops.Cal.AW.Gen. 30 (2001)

79 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. 69 (1996)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009
INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOWRNMENT PUBLICATIONS
The ABCs of Open Government Løws
LEAGUE OF CALIFONUIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS
Open and Pubtic IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. 2"t Ed-' 2010

WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.csbø.org/Sertices/Services/GovernanceTechnology/AgendaOnline.aspx
C aliþrnia Attotney General's Offi c e : http : //vvww. ag. ca. gov

Ins titute fo r L o c al G ov ernm e nt : h ttp : / /www. c ø' i I g. o r g
League of Caliþ rnia Cities : http : //www. c acities. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

150

Page 84 of L22



Board Bylaws

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS

BB 9321(a)

Note: Pursuant to Govemment Code 54962, the Governing Board may hold a closed session only for purposes
expressly authorized by the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963) or by a provision of the Education
Code.

The Governing Board is committed to complying with state open nieeting laws and modeling transparency in its
conduct of district business. The Board shall hold closed sessions only for purposes authorized by law. A closed
session may be held during a regular, special, or emergency meeting in accordance with law.

Note: Government Code 54954.5 provides specific agenda descriptions for most closed session items authorized
the Brown Act.

Each agenda shall contain a general description ofeach closed session item to be discussed at the meeting, as
required by law. (Govemment Code 54954.2)

(cf. 9 j20 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materiøls)

The Board shall disclose in open session the items to be discussed in closed session. In the closed session, the Board
may consider only those matters covered in its statement. Aftcr the closed session, the Board shall reconvene in
open session before adjouming the meeting, and when applicable, shall disclose any action taken in the closed
session, in the manner prescribed by Government Code 54957.1. (Government Code 54957.7)

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed SessionActions and Reports)

The Board shall not disclose any information that is protected by state or federal law. In addition, no victim or
alleged victim oftortious sexual conduct or child abuse shall be identified in any Board agenda, notice,
announcement, or report required by the Brown Act, unless the identity of the person has previously been publicly
disclosed. (Government Code 54957.7, 54961)

(cf 1340 - Access to District Records)

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54963, a Board member who discloses confidential information received in
a closed session may be referred to the local grand jury or may be subject to action in a court of law. For a

definition of confidential information and the actions that may be taken against a Board member if such
information is disclosed, see BB 9011 - Disclosure of ConfidentiallPrivileged Information.

Note: Govemment Code 54957.7 states that before holding any closed session, the Board must disclose in an
open meeting the item(s) to be discussed in the closed session. The Board may either state the information on the
agenda or refer the public to the item(s) as listed by number or letter on the agenda. These disclosures may be
made at the location announced in the agenda for the closed session, as long as the public is allowed to be
present at that location for the pu.rpose of hearing the announcements. In addition, the Board is required to
reconvene m session upon conclusion ofa closed session to action taken in the closed session.

Page 85 of L22

151



BB e32l(b)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

A Boarci member shall not disclose confidential information received in a closed session unless the Board authorizes
the disclosure of that information. (Government Code 54963)

þf. 9AI I - Disclosure of ConfidentiaUPrivileged Information)

Personnel Matters

The Board may hold a closed session under the "personnel exception" to consider the appointrnent employment,
evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of an employee. Such a closed session shall not include
d;".rt""i^^ nr ontinn ^- ^r^^^eerl nnmnpnc¡tínn av^êñf fnr ¡ rer{¡r¡finn nf ¡nmnencofinn fhqf recrrllc frnm fhc

imposition of discipline. 1ôovernment Code 54957f

(cf. 2140 - Evaluatian of the Superíntendent)

þf.  I I5 - Evøluation/Supervísion)

þf.  118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

þf. a2 I 5 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf 4 2 1 8 - Dismiss al/Suspension/Dis ciplinary Action)

4315 -
Note: Pursuant to Govemment Code 54957, failure of the Board to give an employee against'ù/hom a "specific
complaint or charge" has been made the notice describcd below will render any action taken by the Board in the
closed session null and void. Determining whether a "specific complaint or charge" is involved is usually fact-
specific and the Board should consult legal counsel as necessary. In Furtado v. Sierra Community College
District, the court held that the term "specific complaints or charges" as used in Government Code 54957 does

not include negative comments in an employee's performance evaluation. In another decision, Bell v. Vista
Unified School District, the court determined that a presentation to the Board by a district staff member
regarding an employee's violation of a California Interscholastic Federation rule constituted a "complaint or
charge" and thus the employee was entitled to 24-hour notice. Yet another ruling, Morrison v. Housinq Authority
of the City of Los Angeles Board of Commissioners, held that when a board rejects its hearing officer's findings
of fact and conducts its own hearing, the employee must be given 24-hour notice.

Note: Government Code 54957 authonzes the use of closed sessions for personnel matters described below. For
the purpose of these cioseci sessions, "empioyee" inciudes an officer or indepencient contractor who fr¡nctions as

an officer or employee but exclucies Board memb€rs. The Attorney General has concluded that it is appropriate
to use a closed session to discuss and evaluate Superintendent performance. (59 Ops.Cal.AtW.Gen.532 {1976)>
However, under the "personnel exception," the Board may not discuss or act upon any proposed change in
compensation other than a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline in closed
session under this exception.

In Fischer v. Los Anseles Unified School lìisfricf the court interpreted Govemment Code 54957 and found that
the right to request an open session applies only when the Board hears specific complaints or charges brought
against the employee. Thus, the right to request an open session does not apply when the Board is meeting in
closed session to consider the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of
an

L52

Page 86 of L22



BB 9321(c)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Furthermore, an Attorney General opinion (78 Ops.Cal.Affy.Gen. 218 (1995)) has clarified that a probationary
certificated employee does not have the right to an open session when the Board is discussing whether or not to
reemploy himlher for a third consecutive school year. Education Code 44929.21 allows the Board to non-reelect
a probationary certificated employee at the end of the first or second school year as long as written notice is

in accordance with law; see AR 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire.

The Board may also hold a closed session to hear complaints or charges brought against an employee by another
person or employee, unless the employee requests an open session. Before the Board holds a closed session on
specific complaints or charges brought against an employoe, the employee shall receive written notice of his/her
right to have the complaints or charges heard in open session if desired. This noticc shall be delivered personally or
by mail at least 24 hours before the time of the session. (Government Code 54957)

(cf. 1312.1 - Compløints Conceming District Employees)
(cf. 4 I 1 2. 9 /4 2 1 2. 9/4 3 I 2. 9 - Empl oyee Notifications)

The Board may hold a closed session to discuss a district employee's application for early withdrawal of funds in a
deferred compensation plan when the application is based on financial hardship arising from an unforeseeable
emergency due to illness, accident, casualty, or other extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensation
plan. (Government Code 54957.10)

Agenda items related to district employee appointments and employment shall describe the position to be filled.
Agenda items related to performance evaluations shall specif,i the title of the employee being reviewed. Agenda
items related to employee discipline, dismissal, or release require no additional information. (Govemment Code
s49s4.s)

Negotiations/Collective Bargainin g

Note: The Educational Employment Relations Act (Government Code 3540-3549.3) makcs four specific
exemptions from the Brown Act related to negotiations. Government Code 54957.6 provides that for the
purpose ofclosed sessions related to collective bargaining, "employee" includes an officer or independent
contractor who functions as an officer or employee but excludes any elected official, Board member, or other
independent contractor.

Unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties involved, the following shall not be subject to the Brown Act:
(Government Code 3549.1)

Any meeting and negotiating discussion between the district and a recognized or certified employee
organization

2. Any meeting of a mediator with either party or both parties to the meeting and negotiating process

I

Page 87 of 122

153



4.

BB 9321(d)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

3. Any hearing, meeting, or investigation conducted by a factfinder or arbitrator

Any executive (closed) session of the district or between the diskict and its designated representative for
the purpose of discussing its position regârding any matter within the scope of representation and
instructing its designated representatives

þf. ai4ñ/424,tr4340 . Bargatning Units)

þ¡. a i 4 t i4 2 4 3 - Negofiønons/Consuitafion)
(cf 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiatians)

Note: The Board is authorized pursuant to Government Code 54957.6, the "labor exception," to hold clssed
sessions with the diskict's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation
paid in the form of fünge benefi.ts to its represented and unrepresented employees, including the Superintendent.
The Attorney General has opined in 57 Ops. Cal. AW. Gen . 209 (197 4) tlat a board may not meet ín closed
session for such purposes without the use of a designated representative who is involved with the "bona fide"
negotiations with represented and/or unrepresented employees. The Attomey General's publication The Brown
Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, also states that the "labor exception" applies to meeting in
closed session to instruct its with

The Board may meet in closed session to review the Board's position and/or instruct its designated representative
regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form offringe benefits ofits represented and
unrenreqente¡{ emnlnvees Pr"inr in the nlnseri sess.ion the Rnarri shaii i¡lentifu its ¡iesictnated renresentatir¡e in ooen
session. Any closed session held for this purpose may include discussions of the distríct's available funds and
funding priorities, but only insof'ar as they relate to providing instructions to the Board's designated representatlve.
(Govemment Code 54957 .6)

(cf. 2l2l - Superintendent's Contract)

Closed sessions may take place prior to and during consultations and discussions with representatives of employee
organizations andunrepresented employees. Forunrepresented employees, closed sessions heldpursuant to
Govemment Code 54951 .6 shall not include final action on the proposed compensation of one or more
unrepresented employees. (Government Code 54957 .6)

For represented employees" the Board may aiso meet in closed session regarding any other matter within the
statutorily provided scope of representation. (Govemment Code 54957.6)

The Board also may meet in closed session with a state conciliator or mediator who has intervened in proceedings
regarding any of the purposes enumerated in Government Code 54957.6.

154

Page 88 of 122



BB 9321(e)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Agenda items related to negotiations shall specify the name of the district's designated representative(s) attending
the closed session. Ifcircumstances necessitate the absence ofa specified designated representative, an agent or
designee may participate in place of the absent representative as long as the name of the agent or designee is
announced at an open session held prior to the closed session. The agenda shall also speciff the name ofthe
organization representing the employee(s) or the position title of the unrepresented employee who is the subject of
the negotiations. (Govemment Code 54954.5)

Matters Related to Sfudents

The Board shall meet in closed session to consider the expulsion of a student, unless the student submits a written
request at least five days before the date of the hearing that the hearing be held in open session. Regardless of
whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in open or closed session, the Board may meet in closed session for the
purpose of deliberating and determining whether the student should be expelled. (Education Code 48918)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and ExpulsÌon/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

The Board shall meet in closed session to address any student matter that may involve disclosure of confidential
student information, or to consider a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action against a student except
expulsion. If a written request for open session is received from the parenlguardian or adult student, it v/ill be
honored to the extent that it does not violate the privacy rights of any other student. (Education Code 35146, 48912,
49070)

(cf. 5I I7 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 5 I l9 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)
(cf. 5144 - Disciplíne)

Note; Although Government Code 54954.2 requires the agendato have a brief general description of all closed
session items to be discussed, Government Code 54954.5 provides no specific description of agenda items
related to closed sessions authorized by the Education Code. Since the purpose of conducting the closed session
is to protect student privacy rights, the following optional paragraph provides that student names shall not be
included on the

Agenda items related to student matters shall briefly describe the reason for the closed session, such as "student
expulsion hearing" or "gtade change appeal," without violating the confidentiality rights of individual str¡dents. The
student shall not be named on the agenda,but a number may be assigned to the student in order to facilitate record
keeping. The agenda shall also state that the Education Code requires closed sessions in these cases in order to
prevent the disclosure of confidential student record information.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Page 89 of L22

155



BB e32l(Ð

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Security Matters

The Board may meet in closed session with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, district legal counsel,
sheriff or chief of police, or tåeir respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations managet on
matters posing a threat to the securiry ofpublic buildings; to the security of essential public services. including
water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas service, and electric service; or to the public's right of
acçess to public services or public facilities. (Government Code 54957)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Pian)
(cf.3515 - Campus Security)
(cf 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Note: Government Code 54956.5 authorizes an emergency meeting in closed session to meet with the law
enforcement officials specified above pursuant to Government Code 54957. Two-thirds of the Board members
present at the meeting must agree to the need for the closed session. Those emergency situations that neeessitate

a need for an emergency meeting are listed in BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and include a terrorist attack,
crippling disaster, or other activity that impairs public health or safety. For a list of actions for which more than
a majority vote of the Board is required, see BB 9323.2 - Actions by the Board.

The Boarci may meet in cioseci session during an emergency meeting heid pwsuant to Govemment Code 54956.5 to
meet with law enforcement officials for the emergsncy purposos specified in Govemment Codo 54957 if agreedto
by a two-thirds vote of the Board members present. If less than two-thirds of the members are present, then the
Ð^-*; *,,-r ^*^^ L,, ^ ,,-^-;*^,,- .,^+^ ^f +L- *-*L--. ñrôdâñ+ /l:^.,^*^^ r r-^l- <,,1ô<Á <\Ðu4ru ¡uuùr dsr!! uJ 4 wr4trrtrruuô vur! vr uru ruvrrruurr utvrllrl. ruvvwr|.ßrv¡rl vvte JatJv.J,

Agenda items related to security matters shall specify the name of the law enforcement agency and the title of the
of{icer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with whom the Board will consult. (Govemment
Code 54954.5)

Conference with Real Property Negofiator

Note: An Attorney General opinion (94 Ops.Cal.AtW.Gen. 82 (2011)) has concluded that only three subjects
related to real property negotiations may be considered in closed session: (1) the amount of consideration the
local agency is willing to pay or accept in exchange for the real property rights to be acquired.or transferred; (2)
the form, manner, and timing of how that consideration will be paid; and (3) items that are essential to arriving at
the authorized price and payrnent terms. Although Attorney General opinions are not binding, they are accorded
deference by the courts.

The Board may meet in closed session with its real properly negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease

ofreal property by or for the district in order to grant its negotiator authority regarding the price and terms of
payment for the property. (Government Code 54956.8)

156

Page 90 af t22



BB 9321(g)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Before holding the closed session, the Board shall hold an open and public session to identiff its negotiator(s) and
the property under negotiation and to speci$r the person(s) with whom the negotiator may negotiate. (Govemment
Code 54956.8)

For purposes of real property transactions, negotiators may include members of the Board. (Govemment Code
s49s6.8)

Agenda items related to real properÍy negotiations shall specify the district negotiator attending the closed sossion.
If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified negotiator, ari agent or designee may participate in place of
the absent negotiator as long as the name ofthe agent or designee is announced at an open session held prior to the
closed session. The agenda shall also specify the name of the negotiating parties and the street address of the real
properfy under negotiation. If there is no street address, the agenda item shall specify the parcel number or another
unique reference of the property. The agenda item shall also speci$r whether instruction to the negotiator will
concern price, terms of payment, or both. (Government Code 54954.5) /

Pending Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or receive advice from
its legal counsel regarding a pending litigation when a discussion of the matter in open session would prejudice the
district's position in the litigation. For this purpose, "litigation" means any adjudicatory proceeding, including
eminent domain, before a court, administrative body exercising its adjudicatory authority, hearing offîcer, or
arbitrator. (Government Code 54956.9)

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9, the district is considered to be a "part¡/," or to have "significant
exposure," to a litigation if any of its officers or employees is a party or has significant exposure to the litigation
under circumstances in items #l and#2below.

Litigation is considered "pending" in any of the following circumstances: (Govemment Code 54956.9)

L Litigatíon to which the district is a "parf¡r'" has been initiated formally. (Govemment Code 54956.9(a))

2 A point has been reached where, in the Board's opinion based on the advice ofits legal counsel regarding
the "existing facts and circumstances," there is a "significant exposure to litigation" against the district, or
the Board is meeting solely to determine whether, based on existing facts or circumstances, a closed session
is authorized. (Government Code 54956.9(b))

Page 91 ot L22

L57



BB e321(h)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Existingfacts and círcumstances for these purposes are limited to the following: (Govemment Code
549s6.9)

Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the diskict but which the district
believes are not yet known to potential plaintiffs and which do not nccd to be disclosed.

Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or
h'ansaetisnal oeeur¡enes $,'hieh might resuit in litigation against the dist¡ici, wt'ieh aie a'keady
known to potentiai plaintiffs and which musf be pubiicly disclosed before the ciosed session or
specified on the agenda.

The rcccipt of a claim pursuant to the Tort Claims Act or a written tll'eat of litigation fi'r¡m a

potential plaintif{. The claim or written communication must be available for public inspection.

(cf. 3 j20 - Claims ønd Actions Against the Dßtríct)

A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter within the
responsibiiity of the Board.

A threat of litigation made by a pcrson o-sîside cf an open meeting ou a specific matter within the
responsibility ofthe Board, provided that the district official or employee receiving knowledge of
the th¡eat made a record of the statement befbre the meeting and the record is available for public
inspection. Such reeord docs not need to identify an alleged victim oftortious sexual conduct or
anyone making a threat on his/her behalf or identiff an employee who is the alleged perpetrator of
any ullawf:! ortortiol:s c,oqdt-rct" r:¡less tl'e identit- crf rhi5 pq¡scr¡ he"e þsn pt-t-blicly disctoserl

Based on existing facts and circumstances, the Board has decided to initiate or is deciding whether to
initiate litigation. (Govemment Code 54956.9(c)

Before holding a closed session pursuâtlt to the pending litigation exception, the Board shall state on the agenda or
publicly announce the subdivision of Government Code 54956.9 under which the closed session is being held. If
authority is based on Government Code 54956.9(a), the Board shall either state the title or specifically identiff the
litigation to be disoussed or state that doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to effectuate service of process
upon rmserved parties or to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage. (Government Code 54956.9)

a.

b.

Å

3

158

Page 92 of L22



BB e32l(Ð

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Agenda items related to pending litigation shall be described as a conference with legal counsel regarding either
"existing litigation" or "anticipated litigation." (Government Code 54954.5)

"Existing litigation" items shall identifu the name of the case specified by either the claimant's n¿ìme, names of
parties, or case or claim number, unless the Board states that to identiff the case would jeopardize service of process
or existing settlement negotiations. (Government Code 54954.5)

"Anticipated litigation" items shall state that there is significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Govemment Code
54956.9(b) and shall specifli the potential number of cases. When the district expects to initiate a suit, items related
to anticipated litigation shall state that the discussion relates to the initiation of litigation pursuant to Government
Code 54956.9(c) and shall specify the potential number of cases. The agenda ór an oral statement before the closed
session may be required to provide additional information regarding existing facts and circumstances described in
item#2 b-e above. (Government Code 54954.5)

Joint Powers Agency Issues

Note: The following section applies to districts participating in a joint potryers agency (JPA) for insurance
or in a self-insurance

The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim for the payment of tort liability losses, public liability
losses, or workers' compensation liability incurred by a joint powers agency (JPA) formed for the purpose of
insutance pooling or self-insurance authority of which the district is a member. (Government Code 54956.95)

Closed session agendaitems related to liability claims shall specify the claimant's name and the name of the agency
against which the claim is made. (Government Code 54954.5)

(cf 3530 - Risk Management/Inntrance)

When the board of the JPA has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel, the Board may meet in
closed session in order to receive, discuss, and take action conceming

Note: Pursuant to Govemment Code 54956.96, a JPA may adopt a provision, either through a policy or through
the joint powers agreement, authorizing a school district Board member serving on the JPA board to disclose
confidential information rcceived during the JPA board's closed session undcr the circumstances specifîed
below. Government Code 54954.5 provides an agenda description for the purpose of this closed session. The

are for use by districts that in a JPA that has such a

Page 93 of 122

159



BB e321(i)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

information obtained in a closed session of the JPA. During the Board's clossd session, a Board member serving on

the JPA board may disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session of the JPA to fellow Board

members. (Government Code 54956.96)

The Board member may also disclose the confidential JPA infotmation to disfict legal counsel in order to obtain

advice on whether the matter has dkect financial or liability implicaticns for the district. {Governrnent Code

s49s6.96)

Ciosed session agenda items relatecÍ to conferences invoiving a JPA shaii specify the ciosçci scssion description used

by the JPA and the name of the Board member representing the district on the JPA board. Additional information
iisfing the names of agencies or tities of representatives attending the closed session as consuitants or other
representatives shall also be included. (Government Code 54954.5)

t(eview ol Audit Report lrorn Calilornia State Auditor's olllce

Note: Govemment Code 54956.75 authorÞes the Board to meet in closed session to discuss a final draft audit

repoft from the Caiifornia State Auditor's Office. This authority reiates to situations in which a member of the

legislature has requested the California State Auditor's Office to audit a school district. This audit is separate

from the annual audit that districts must conduct pursuant to Education Code 41020. The law does not authorize
the Board to meet in ciosed session io discuss the district's annuai audit.

Upon receipt of a confidential final draft audit report from the Califomia State Auditor's Office, the Board may meet

in ciosed session to riiscuss it-s response to that r:eport After pubiíc reiease of the report from the Caüfornia State

Auditor's Office, any Board meeting to discuss the report must be conducted in opett session, unless exempted from
that requrrement by some other provision of iaw. lGovemment Cotie 5495o.75)

Closed session agenda items related to an audit by the California State Auditor's OfFrce shall state "Audit by
Califomia State Auditor's Office." (Government Code 54954.5)

Review of Assessment Instruments

The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment instrument approved or
adopted for the statewide testing system. Before any such meeting, the Board shall agree by resolution to accept any

terms or conditions established by the State Board of Education for this review. (Education Code 60617)

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

Note: The following optional paragraph provides for compliance with Government Code 54954.2, which
requires the agenda to have a brief general description of all closed session items to be discussed. Govemment

Code 54954.5 provides no specific description of agenda items related to closed sessions authorized by the

Education Code.

BB e321(k)

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS (continued)

Agenda items related to the review of student assessment instruments shall state that the Board is reviewing the

contents of an assessmçnt instrument approved or adopted for the statewide testing program anci that Education

r60

Page 94 of t22



Code 60617 authorizes a closed session for this purpose in order to maintain the confidentiality of the assessment
under review.

Legøl Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
35145 Public meetings
35 146 Closed session (re student suspension)
44929.21 Districts with ADA of 250 or more
489 I 2 Governing board suspension
48918 Rules governing expulsionprocedures; heørings ønd notice
49070 Chøllenging content ofstudents records
60617 Meetings of governing board

VERNMENT
3 5 40-3 5 49. 3 Educationøl Employment Relatíons Act
6252-6270 Caliþrnia Public Records Act
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act
COURT DECISIONS
Monison v. Housinp Authoritv of the City of Los Anseles Board of Commissioners. (2003) 107 Cal.App.4th
860
Bell v. Vista Unifred School District. (2001) 82 Cal.App. 4th 672
Fischer v. Los Anseles Unifred School District. (i,999) 70 Cal.App. 4th 87
Furtado v. Siena Community Collese District (1998) 68 Cal.App. 4th 876
Roberts v. Citv of Palmdale, (1993) 5 Cal.App. 4th 363
Sacramento Nauspaper Guild v. Sacramento Countv Board of Supervisors. (1965) 263 Cal.App. 2d 41
San Dieço Union v. City Council. (i,983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947
ATTONIrcY GENEN¿L OPINIONS
94 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 82 (2011)
86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003)
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (1995)
59 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. 532 (1976)
57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen.209 (1974)

Manøgement Resources
C,gBA PUBLICATIONS
The Broyw Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws. 2009
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: Open Meetinss for Legislative Bodies. 2003
LEAGUE OF CITIES PUBLICATIONS
Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev. July 2A10

Management Resources continued (seen next page):

Page 95 of L22

161



BB e32l(l)

CLOSED SESSION PIIRPOSES AND AGE¡{DAS (continued)

Management Resotrces (contiru,ted) :
WEB SITES
CSBA: http : //www.csba. org
Cøliþrniø Anorney General's ffi ce : http : //www-oc¿ç. ca.gov
Le ague of C aI iþ r n i a C it ies : http : //ww w. c ac il ies. o r g

Bylaw IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCIIOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

L62

Page 96 of L22



Board Bylaws

CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS AND REPORTS

BB 9321.1(a)

No matters other than those announced in open session shall be acted upon during the closed session. (Government
Code 54957.7)

(cf 9321 - Closed Session Purposes andAgendas)

The Governing Board shall reconvene in open session before adjourning and report closed session actions, the votes
or abstentions thereon, and other disclosures required by Government Code 54957.1- These discloswes may be
made at the location an¡ounced in the agenda for the closed session, as long as the public is allowed to be present at
that location for the purpose of hearing them. (Govemment Code 54957.7)

Personnel Matters

The Board shall report any personnel action taken and the votes or abstentions thereon at the public meeting during
which the closed session is held. This report shall identify the title of the position. However, the report of a
dismissal or nonrenewal of an employment contract shall be deferred until the first public meeting after
adminiskative remedies, if any, have been exhausted. (Government Code 54957.I)

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning Distríct Employees)
(cf. 2140 - Evaluøtion of the &ryerintendent)
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
þf. a 2 1 8 - Dismiss al/Susp ension/Dis ciplinary Ac tion)

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

Final action on tle proposed compensation of one or more unrepresented employees shall not be taken during the
closed session. (Government Code 54957.6)

Approval of an agreement concluding closed session labor negotiations with represented employees shall be
reported after the agreement is final and has been accepted or ratified by the other party. This report shall identify
the item approved and the other party or parties to the negotiation. (Government Code 54957 -I)

(cf, 4 1 4 3 /4 2 4 j - Negotiations/Consultation)
(cf. 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations)

Student Matters

Actions related to student matters shall be taken in open session and shall be a matter of public record. No
informationshallbereleasedinviolationofstudentprivacyrightsprovidedinlaw. (Education Code35146,48918;
20usc 1232)

In an expulsion action, the student's identification number and the cause for expulsion shall be disclosed in open
session.

Page 97 of t22

163



2.

3.

BB 932i.1(b)

CLOSED SESSICIN ACTIONS AND REPORTS (eontinued)

Real Estate Negotiations

Approval of an agreement conchrcling real estate negotiations shall be reported at'ter the agreement is final. If the
Board renders the agreement final, it shall report tlat approval, the votes or absteniions thereon, and the substance of
the agreement in open session at the public meeting during which the closed session is held. If final approval rests

with thé othei Þaity, the Superintendent or designee shafl disclose the fact õfthát aþproväl and the subStance ofthe
agreement upon inquiry by any person, as soon as the other pery or its agent has informed the district of its
approval. (Government Code 54957. 1)

Pending Litigation

The Board shall report the following actions related to peirding litigation, and the votes or abstentions thereon, at the
public meeting during which the closed session is held: (Government Code 54957.1)

Approval to legai counsel to defend, appeai or not appeai, or otherwise appear in litigation. This report
shall identify the adverse parties, if known, and the substance of the litigation.

Approval to legai counsel ío initiate or inter-vene in a iawsuit. This repori shali state ihat directirns Éo

initiate or intervene in thc action have been given and that details will be disclosed to inquiring parties after
the lawsuit is commenced unless doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to serve process on
unserved parties or its ability to conclude existing settlement negoiiations to iis advantage.

Aceeptance of a signed offer ftom the otier parry or panies which flrnaüzes the seaiement of pentiing
litigation. This report shall state the substance of the agreement.

If approval is given to legal counsel to settle pending litigation and if tinal approval rests with the other parly or with
the court, the district shall report the fact of approval, the substance of the agreement and the vote and abstentions
thereon to persons who inquire once the settlement is final. (Government Code 54957.1)

JPA/Self-Insurance Claims

The Board shall report the disposition ofjoint powers authority or self-insurance claims and the votes or abstentions
thereon at the public meeting during which the closed session is held. This report shall include the narne of the

claimant(s), the name of the agency claimed against, the substance of the claim and the monetary settlement agreed
upon by the claimant. (Government Code 54957.1)

164

Page 98 of t22



BB 9321.1(c)

CLOSED SESSIONACTIONS AND REPORTS (continued)

(cf 3320 - Claims and Actíans Against the District)
(cf, 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

Review of Assessment Instruments

At the public meeting during which the Board holds a closed session to review student assessment instruments, the
Board shall confirm that this review was made. Any actions related to the review shall be taken in open session
without revealing any proprietary or confidential information and shall be a matter of public record.

(cf 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35145 Public meetings
3 5 I 46 Closed sessíon (re student møtters)
48918 Rules governing expulsionprocedures; hearings and notice
49073-49079 Privacy of student records
60617 Meettngs of governingboard
GOWRNMENT CODE
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54957. I Closed sessíons; public report of action taken
5 49 5 7. 6 Clos ed sessio ns ; repres entatives to employee organization(s)
54957.7 Disclosure of items lo be discussed
(INITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
12329 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.8 Family Eù.rcational Rights and Privacy
COURT DECISIONS
Kleitmøn v. Superior Court of Santa Clara County 87 Cøl Rptr- 2d (1999)
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
80 Ops.Cal.Atv.Gen. 85 (1997)

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton Cify, Califomia

Page 99 of t22

165



Board Bylaws

AGENDA/MEETING MATERIALS

BB 9322(a)

Agenda Content

Goveming Board meeting agendas shall state the meeting time and place and shall briefly describe each business
item to be transacted or discussed. including items to be discussed in closed session. {Government Coúe 54954.2,\

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf 932 i- ehsèrÌ Session Pùrp:6"t anaÌ Ag¿ndas)

The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board on any agenda item before or
dwing the Board's consideration of the item. The agenda shall also provide members of the public an opporh¡nity to
testif,i at regular meetings on mafters which are not on tJre agenda but which are wrthin the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. (Education Code 35145.5; Government Code 54954.3)

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Each meeting agenda shall list the address designated by the Superintendent or designee for pubiic inspection of
agenda documents that have been distributed to the Board less than72 hours before the meeting. (Government Code
s49s7.s)

The agenda shall specifu that an individual should contact the Superintendent or designee ifhe/she requtes
disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in
1L^ Þ^^-l 

-^^|:-- 
/ f1^-,^ñ^^^+ rt^J^ <,4ô</ ,)\

trrw uv4rg rtrwvt¡rtË,. lvvv!Á¡u¡tvttt vvw J1 ,J1.-,t

¡ÌBErr(^rA rrcpat'Atrolr

The Board president and the Superintendent, as secrstary to the Board, shall work together to develop the agenda for
each regular and special meeting. Each agenda shall reflect the district's vision and goals and the Board's focus on
student learning.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf.9121 - Prestdent)
(cf. 9122 - Secretary)

Any Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed
on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent or designee with
supporting documents and information, if any, at least one week before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted
less than a week before the scheduled meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient
time for consideration and research of the issue.

r66

Page 100 af 122



BBe322(b)

AGENDA/iVIEETING MATERIALS (continued)

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether a request is within the subject matter jurisdiction of
the Board. Items not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may not be placed on the agenda. In
addition, before placing the item on the agenda, the Board president and Superintendent shall determine if the item
is merely a request for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy or administrative regulation.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether anagenda item is appropriate for discussion in open or
closed session, and whether the item should be an action item subject to Board vote, an information item that does
not require immediate action, or a consent item that is routine in nature and for which no discussion is anticipated.

Any Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and deliberated upon as

a separate item of business on the meeting agenda. (Government Code 53635.7)

(cf. 932j.2 - Actions by the Board)

All public communications with the Board are subject to requirements of relevant Board policies and administrative
regulations.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning Distríct Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.3 - Unform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 1312.4 - Iïilliams Uniftrm Complaint Procedures)
(cf, 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the Dßtrict)
(cf. 514a.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

Consent Agenda/Calendar

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon them together by a
single vote through the use of a consent agenda. Consent agenda items shall be items of a routine nature and items
for which Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval.

When any Board member requests the removal of an item from the consent agenda, the item shall be removed and
given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.

The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to comrnent on any consent agenda item that has
not been previously considered. However, the agenda need not provide an opporfunity for public comment when the
consent agenda item has previously

Page 101 af L22

L67



tsB 9322(c)

AGENDAÂVIEETING MATERIALS (continued)

been considered at an open meeting of a committee comprised exclusively of all the Board members provided that
members of the public were afforded an opportunity to'comment on the item at that meeting, unless the item has
been substantially changed since the committee considered it. (Government Code 54954.3)

Agenda Díssemination to Board iVlembers

At least tlree days before each regular meeting, each Board member shall be provided a copy of the agenda and
agenda packer, including the Superintendent or designee's feport; minutes to be aftÞfóvêd; cóþiês of
communications; reports from committees, staff, citizens, and others; and other available documents pertinent to the
meeting.

When special meetings are called, the Superintendent or designee shall make every effort to distribute the agenda
and supporting materials to Board members as soon as possible before the meeting.

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may confer directly with
the Superintendent or designee to ask questions and/or request additional information on agenda items. However, a

majority of Board members shali not directþ or through intermediaries or elecironic means discuss, deliberate, or
take action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

þf 9Ai2 - Board fuiember Elecî¡,o;'¡ic Cominunications)

Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public

The Superintendent or designee shall mail a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the
^^^-^l^ -^^l-^¿ --,L^ -^---^^¿- ¿L^:.^-^- TL^ 

-^¿^i^!^ -L-ll l-- *^:l-l ^r.L^ ¿:-^ tL^ ^-^-l^ :^ -^^¿^l4Ë9rru4 P49ñ9U tU ouJ Pçt¡Wrr Wr¡V ¡çt{UFùtù t¡19 ltV_U!ù, r rlç ral4Lçrrôrù s¡idtl uç tll4ltçs ct tllç tl¡¡aç'uIç 4ëçus4 ¡D Pwùl9q
or upon distribution of the agenda to a majorify of the Board, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 54954.1)

If a document which relates to an open session agenda item of a regular Board meeting is distributed to the Board
less than 72 hours prior to a meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the document available for public
inspection at a designated location at the same time the document is distributed to all or a majority of the Board,
provided the document is a public record under the Public Records Act. The Superintendent or designee may also
post the document on the district's web site in a position and manner that makes it clear that the document relates to
an agenda item for an upcoming meeting. (Government Code 54957.5)

(cf. I I 13 - District and School Web Sites)

þf. l3a0 - Access to District Records)

168

Page 102 of L22



BB e322(d)

AGENDAflVIEETING MATERIALS (continued)

Any document prepared by the district or Board and distributed during a public meeting shall be made available for
public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person shall be made available for public
inspection after the meeting. These requirements shall not apply to a document that is exempt from public
disclosure under the Public Records Act. (Govenrment Code 54957.5)

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any writings distributed
at the meeting available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans
with Disabilities Act. (Govemment Code 54954.1)

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for the calendar
year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January I of each year. (Goven:ment Code
s49s4.t)

Persons requesting mailing of the agenda or agenda packet shall pay an annual fee, as determined by the
Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost ofproviding the service.

Legal Reference: (see nextpage)

Page 103 oft22

169



BB 9322(e)

AGENDA/II,IEETING MATERIALS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35144 Special meetings
35145 Public meetings
35145.5 Right ofpublic to place rnatters on agenda
GOYERNMENT CODE

ì î--- - ^---- ^--t D ^- ^-,.-^ ^- -tttútaøÉcrt,ct,t twùvútt Lçù -

CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Call to Order: A Bhrcprint for Great Board Meetings, 2010
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009
ATTORNE Y G E NE RAL P UB LICATI ON S
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Lesislative Bodies. rev. 2003
WEB SITES
CSBA, Agenda Online : http : //www. csba.org
C aliþrni a Att orney G en eral's Offi c e : http : //www. o ø g. c a. g ov

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

6250-6270 Publíc Records Act
5J635.7 Separate ítem ofbtsiness
54954. I Mailecl agendø oJ- meeting
54954.2 Agendø postíng requirements; board actions
54954.3 Opportunityfor public to address iegisiaiive body
54954.5 Closed session item descnphons
54956. 5 Emergency meetings
54957.5 Public records
54960.2 Challenging board øctions; cease and desist
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1210i-12213 Americans with Disabtlities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
3 5. I 60 Effective communications
3ó.JUi ,Aueiiiary aicis and. services
COURT DECISIONS
Moonev v. Garcia, (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229
CalCwel! ,¡. R.oseville Joint Union Híeh School District, 2007 U.S. Dìst. LEXIS 663 I I

170

Page 104 of L22



Board Bylaws

MEETING CONDUCT

BB 9323(a)

Meeting Procedures

All Governing Board meetings shall begin on time and shall be guided by an agenda prepared in accordance with
Board bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance the Ralph M. Brown Act (open meeting requirements) and
other applicable laws.

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meettng Møterials)

The Board president shall conduct Board meetings in accordance with Board bylaws and procedures that enable the
Board to efficientþ consider issues and carry out the will of the majority.

(cf.9121 - President)

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Board's decision-making
ability, and can be a burden to staff. Regular Board meetings shall be adjoumed at 10;30 p.m. unless extended to a
specific time determined by a majority of the Board. The meeting shall be extended no more than once and
subsequently may be adjourned to a later date.

(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Quorum and Abstentions

The Board shall act by majority vote of all of the membership constituting the Board. (Education Code 35164)

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

The Board believes that when no conflict of interest requires abstention, its members have a duty to vote on issues
before them. When a member abstains, his/her abstention shall not be counted for purposes of determining whether
a majority of the membership of the Board has taken action.

(cf. 9270 - Codlict of Interest)

Public Participation

Members of the public are encouraged to attend Board meetings and to address the Board concerning any item on
the agenda or within the Board's jwisdiction. So as not to inhibit public participation, persons attending Board
meetings shall noi be requested to sign in, complete a questionnaire, or otherwise provide their name or other
information as a condition of attending the meeting.

Page 105 oft22

L7I



)

J

BB 9323(b)

MEETING CONDUCT (continued)

In order to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient manner, the Board requires that public presetrtations

to the Board comply with the following procedures:

The Board shall gíve members of the public an opportunily to address the Board on any item of interest to
the public that is within the subject rnatter jurisdiction cf the Board, either before or during tho Board's
consideration of the item. (Education Code 35145.5, Govemment Code 54954.3)

At a time so desigaated on the agenciaataregrljar meeting, members of the pubiic may bring before the

Board matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board shall take no action or discussion on any item
not appearing on the posted agenda, excspt as authorized by law. (Education Cods 35 i45.5, Government
Code 54954.2)

Wrthout taking actron, tloard members or drstnct staft members may bnetly respond to statements made or
questions posed by the public about items not appearing on the agenda. Additionally, on their own
initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a Board or staff member may ask a question for
clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his/ner own activities. (Government

Code 54954.2)

Furthemacie, ihe Bcard or a Board äler-rber may proviie a reference io siaff or other resoi¡íces for factuai
infonnation, ask staffto report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting conceming afìy matter, or take
action directing staffto place a matter of business on a future agenda. (Government Code 54954.2)

4. The Board need not allow the public to speak on any item that has akeady been consideredby a committee
--,--,----J ---^l---:---:-- ^fD^^-l ----L^-^ -. ^ ---Ll:^ -^^¿:--,,.L^-^ 

¿L^ ---L1:^ L^l +L^ ^--^+,-:t'+^uurilPlr¡sEu ËÃErHstvErJ ut Þ94tu ttlçltt9çlù Gr 4 Puurr9 urÞvl'¡uË wlr9rv r¡¡9 Pu91¡Þ u4u Lue ePPerssürlJ rv

address the committee on that item. However, if the Board determines that the item has been substantially
changed since the committee heard the item, the Board shall provide an opportunity for the public to speak.

(Govemment Code 54954.3)

(cf.9130 - Board Committees)

A person wishing to be heard by the Board shall first be recognized by the president and shall then proceed

to comment as briefly as the subject permits.

Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or nonagenda item-
The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the

president may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the

number of

5.

L72

Page 106 of t22



6

BB 9323(c)

MEETING CONDUCT (continued)

persons wishing to be heard. The president may take a poll of speakers for or against a particular issue and
may ask that additional persons speak only if they have something new to add.

The Board president may rule on the appropriateness of a topic. If the topic would be more suitably
addressed at a later time, the president may indicate the time and place when it should be presented.

The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of its policies, procedures, programs, services, acts, or
omissions. (Government Code 54954.3) In addition, the Board may not prohibit public criticism of district
employees.

Whenever a member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an employee, the Board
president shall inform the complainant that in order to protect the employee's right to adequate notice
before a hearing of such complaints and charges, and also to preserve the ability of the Board to legally
consider the complaints or charges in any subsequent evaluation of the employee, it is the policy of the
Board to hear such complaints or charges in closed session unless otherwise requested by the employee
pursuant to Government Code 54957. The Board president shall also encourage the complainant to file a
complaint using the appropriate district complaint procedwe.

(cf. I3l2.l - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 932 I - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The Board president shall not permit any disturbance or willful intemrption of Board meetings. Persistent
disruption by an individual or group shall be grounds for the president to terminate the privilege of
addressing the Board.

The Board may remove disruptive individuals and order the room cleared if necessary. In this case,
members of the media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to remain, and individuals not
participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the discretion of the Board. When the room
is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern only matters appearing on
the agenda. (Government Code 54957.9)

When such disruptive conduct ocsurs, the Superintendent or designee shall contact local law enforcement.

Recording by the Public

The Superintendent or designee shall designate locations from which members of the public may broadcast,
photograph, or tape record open meetings without causing a distraction.

7

Page 107 of t22

173



BB e323(d)

MEETING CONDUCT (continued)

(cf. %2a - Board Minutes and Recordings)

If the Board finds that noise, illumination, or obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt
the proceedings, these activities shall be discontinued or restricted as detemined by the Board. (Govemment Code

54953.5,54953.6>

Legal Reference: (see next page)

174

Page 108 of t22



BB 9323(e)

MEETING CONDUCT (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
5095 Powers of remaining board members and new appointees
32210 Willful disturbance of public school or meeting a misdemeanor
35010 Prescription and enforcement ofrules
3 5 1 4 5. 5 Agenda; public participation ; regulations
35163 Official øctions, minutes and journal
3 5 I 64 Vote requirements
35165 Effect of vacancies upon majority and unanìmous votes by seven member board
GOI/ERNMENT CODE
5 49 5 3 .5 Audio or video tape recording of proceedings
5 49 5 3.6 Broadcasting of proceedings
54954.2 Agenda; posting; action on other matters
5 4 9 5 4. 3 Opportunilt for public to address I egislativ e b odlt ; re gul ations
54957 Closed sessions
54957.9 Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of room
PENAL CODE
403 Disruption of assembly or meettng
COURT DECISIONS
McMøhonv. Albøny Unilìed School District, (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 1275
Rubínv. City of Burbønk, (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 1194
Bøcav. Moreno Vallev UniÍìed School District, (1996) 936 F.Supp.719
ATTOPJ{EY GENE RAL OP INIONS
76 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. 281 (1993)
66 Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. 336 (i,983)
63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 2 I 5 (1 980)
6 I Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 243, 25 3 (1 978)
55 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (1972)
59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Aet: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws. rev. 2005
Bplrdlresidents' Handþgok, rev. 2002

School B oard Governance
ATTO RNEY GENE RAL P UB LI CATI ONS
The Brown Act: Ooen Meetinss for Lesislative Bodies, 2003
WEB SITES
CSBA : http : //wv'rw. cs ba. org
C a lifo rni a A tt o nt ey G en er a l's Offi c e : http : //ututw. c aa g. s ta t e. c ø. u s

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

Page 109 ofL22

L75



Board Bylaws

ACTIONS BY THE BOARI)

BB 9323.2(a)

The Governing Board shall act by a majority vote of all of the membership constituting the Board, unless otherwise
required by law. (Education Code 35i64)

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cJ. 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electroníc Communications,)
(cf. 92tt - Lîmits of Eoørd Member Atrihortiy)

An "action" by the Board means: (Govemment Code 54952.6)

I. A coilective decision by a majonty ot the tsoard members

2 a coiiective commitment or promise by a ma3onry of the Board members to make a positive or negative
decision

1

2,

3

3. A vote by a majority of the Board members when sitting as thc Board upon a motion, proposal, resolution,
order, or ordinance

The Èoarii shaii noi iake aciion by c€creï'tailcí, 'whethei preiiminary or änai. {Goverä'-neni Code 54953)

Actions taken by the tsoard in open session shall be recorded in the Board minutes. (Education Code 35145)

(cf. %2a - Minutes and Recordíngs)

Action on Non-Agenda Items

After publicly identifying the item, the Board may take action on a subject not appearing on the posted meeting
agenda under any of the following conditions: (Government Code 54954.2)

When a majority of the Board determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined for emergency
meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.5

'When two-thirds of the members present, or if less than two-thirds of the members are present then by a
unanimous vote of all members present, determine that the need to take immediate action came to the

district's attention after the agenda was posted

When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting that occurred not more than
five days earlier

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

L76

Page 110 of L22



5

6

BB e323.2(b)
ACTIONS BY THE BOARD (continued)

Challenging Board Actions

The district attorney's office or any interested person may file an action in court to stop or prevent the Board's
violation or threats of violations of the Brown Act, to determine the applicabili{y of the Brown Act to ongoing or
future threatened Board actions, to determine the validity, under California or federal law, of any Board rule or
action to penalize any of its members or otherwise discourage the member's expression, or to compel the Board to
audio record its closed sessions because of its violation of any applicable Govemment Code provision.
(Govemment Code 54960)

The district attorney or any interested person may present a demand that the Board cure and correct a Board action
which helshe alleges is in violation of law regarding any of the following: (Government Code 54960.1)

l. Open meeting and teleconferencing (Government Code 54953)

2. Agendaposting (GovernmentCode54954.2)

3. Closed session item descriptions (Govemment Code 54954.5)

4. New or increased tax assessments (Government Code 54954.6)

Special meetings (Govemment Code 54956)

Emergency meetings (Govemment Code 54956.5)

Any demand to "cure and correct" an alleged violation shall clearly describe the challenged action and the nature of
the alleged violation and shall be presented to the Board in writing within 90 days of the date when the action was
taken. If the alleged violation concerns action taken in an open session but in violation of Government Code
54954.2 (agenda posting), the written demand must be made within 30 days of the date when the alleged action took
place. (Govemment Code 54960.1)

V/ithin 30 days of receiving the demand, the Board shall do one of the following: (Govemment Code 54960.1)

L Cure or correct the challenged action and inform the demanding party in writing of its actions to cure or
correct.

Determine not to cure or correct the alleged violation and inform the demandingparty in writing of its
decision to not cure or correct.

2

Page 111 of 122

L77



J

BB 9323.2(c)
ACTIONS BYTHF. BOARD (continued)

Take no action. If the Board takes no action within the 30-day review period, its inaction shall be
considered a decision not to cure or correct the aetion.

In addition, the district attorney's office or any interested party may file an action in court to determine the
applicability of the Brown Act to any past Boaf,d âction not specified in Government Code 54960.1, if the following
conditions are met: (Govemmant Code 54960.2)

'Within nine months of the aiieged vioiation, a çease and desist ietier is submiiteci io ifre Board, cieariy
describing the past Board action and the nature of the alleged violation.

The time fol the Board trr respond has expired and the Board has not provided an unconditioual
commitment to cease and desist from and not repeat the past action alleged to have violated the Brown Act.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
15266 Sclzaal construction bonds
17466 Declaration ofintent to sell or lease real property
17481 Lease of property with residenceJ'or nondistrict putposes
17 5 10-175 1 I Resolution requiring unanimous vote of all members constituting board
17546 Privaie saie ofpersonøl property
! 7 5 -1 6- ! 7 5 6 ! D e,-|-ic cttiot; o"f rs ç¡! pvsp 41"¡,t

35140-35149 Meetings
35160-35178.4 Powers and duties
48660-48661 Community day schools, establishment and restrictions
CODE OF CIWLPROCEDUKE
425.1ô Special motion to strike in connectionwith a publìc issue
1245.240 Eminent domain vote requirements
1245.245 Eminent domain, resolution ødopting dffirent use

GOVERNMENT CODE
53090-53097.5 Regulation oflocøl agencies by counties and cities
53724 Parcel tax resolution requírements
5 37 90-5 37 92 Exceeding the budget
5 3820-5 3 8 3 3 Temporary borrowing
5 3 8 50-5 3 8 5 I Temporary borrowing
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54952.6 Action taken, defi.nition
54953 Meetíngs to be open and public; attendance; secr€t ballots
54960-54960.5 Actions to prevent violøtions
65352.2 Coordination with planníng qgency

Legal Reference corctínued: (see next page)

2

L78

Page 112 of L22



BB 9323.2(d)

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE
3400 Bid specifications
20111 Connacß over 850,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20113 Emergencies, award of contracts without bids
COURT DECISIONS
Los Anseles Times Communications LLC v. Los Anqeles County Boqrd of Supervisors (2003) I 12
Cal.App.4th 1313
McKee v. Oranse Unilìed School District (2003) I 10 Cal.App.4th I 3I0
Bell v. Vista Unifìed School District (2002) 82 Cal.App.4tk 672
Bovle v. CìN of Redondo Beach (1999) 70 Cal.App.4th 1109

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School and Open Meetins Laws. 2009
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUB LICATIONS
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Lesíslative Bodies. 2003
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICANONS
Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Raloh M. Brown Act. 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA : http : //www. csb ø. or g
C affi rni a A tto rney Ge n er al's Offi c e : http : //www. o ag. c a. gov
Institut e of L o c a I Gov ernm e nt : h@ : //www. c a-i I g. o r g

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, California

Page 113 of L22

L79



3

À+.

6.

Board Bylaws

ACTIONS BY THE BOARI)

E(t) e323.2(a)

ACTTONS REQUIRTNG A SUPER MAJORTTYVOTE

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board:

L Resolution declaring intention to sell cr lease real property (Education Code 17466)

(cf, 328û - Saie or í-ease of Dinrict.Owned Reaí Properiy)

2. Resolution declaring intent of Governing Board to convey or dedicate propefty to t}re state or any political
subCivision for t"ne pulposes specified in Education Corie i7556 (Education Code i7557)

Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding officer, secretary, or

member, to execute a cieed of deeircation or. conveyance of property to the state or a polltlcal subdtvtston

(Education Code 17559)

Lease, for up to three months, of school property which has a residence on it and which cannot be

developed for district purposes because funds are unavailable (Education Code 17481)

Requesr fer temporary borrowing pìÀrsuairi ïo Government Code 5382û-53833 , to pay district obiigations
incured beforo the receipt of district income for the fiscal year sufficient to meet the payment(s)
(Govemment Code 53821)

Upon complying with Govemment Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 21151.2, action to render city
or ccunty zoning srdinances inapplicable to a_ proposed.¡se qrf tte prope+$ by the rlistrieX lGovernrnent

Code 53094)

(cf 71 31 - Relations with Local Agencies)
(c[7150 - Sìte Selection andDevelopment)
(cf 7lti| - Charter School Facilities)

7. When the district has an average daily attendance (ADA) of 2,500 or less and seeks to situate a community

day school on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities are not available for
a community day school (Education Code 48661)

8. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8 and seeks to situate a community day school on an

existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities are not available for a community
day schooi (Education Code 4866i)

180

Page 114 of t22



9.

E(t) e323.2(b)
ACTIONS BY THE BOAR-D (continued)

When the district desires to operate a community day school to serve any of grades K-6 (and no higher
grades) on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory altemative facilities are not available for a
communþ day school (Education Code 48661)

(cf. 6185 - Community Døy School)

10. Resolution of intent to issue general obligation bonds with the approval of 55 percent of the voters of the
district (Education Code 15266)

(cf. 7214 - General Oblîgation Bonds)

I 1 . Resolution of intent to issue bonds within a school facilities improvement district with the approval of 55
percent of the voters of the school facilities improvement district (Education Code 15266)

(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Dístricts)

12. Resolution to place a parcel tax on the ballot (Government Code 53724)

13. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board subsequently desires to
use the property for a different use than stated in the resolution ofnecessity, a subsequent resolution so
authorizing the different use (Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240,1245.245)

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting:

Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the
district's attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-thirds of the Board members are present
at the meeting, a unanimous vote of all members present is required. (Government Code 54954.2)

Determinatio n that aclosed session is necessary during an emergency meeting. If less than n¡¡o-thirds of
the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all members present is required. (Government Code
s49s6.5)

(cf. 9j20 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board:

Expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or personnel to meet a national or
local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, or sabotage, or to provide for adequate
national or local defense (Govemment Code 53790-53792)

(cf. 3110 - Transfer ofFunds)

2.

I

Page 115 ofL22

181



2

+.

E(t) e323.2(c)
ACTIONS BY THE BOARD (continued)

Resolution for district borrowing based on issuance of notes, tax anticipation warrants, or other evidences
of indebtedness, in an amount up to 50 percent of the district's estimated income and revenue for the fiscal
year or the portion not yet collected at the time of the borrowing (Government Code 53822,53824)

Resolution for district borrowing, betweEn July 15 and August 30 of aly fiscal year, of up to 25 percent of
tåe estrmated income and revenuc to be received by the district during that fiscal year from apportionments
based on ADA for the preceding school year (Government Code 53823-53824)

Deciaraiion of an emergency in or<ier to authorize the district io inciu<ie a panicuiar brand name or produci
in a bid specification (Public Contract Code 3400)

(cf. ssii -Biús)

¡rcúions R.equiring a -únanimous Vote oiúhe Board:

Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a community lease for extraction of gas (Education
Code 17510-17511)

Waiver of the competitive bid process pursuant to Public Contract Codc 201I I when the Board determines

thalan ernergency exists and upon appr+val of the Cou:rty Superintendent of Schools iPubiic C+nkaci
Code 201 l3)

Action Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting:

Private sale of surplus properf-v without advertisement in order to establish that such propert-v is not worth
more than $2,500. Disposal of surplus property in the local dwhp or donation to a charitable organization
requires the unanimous vote of the Board members present to establish that the value of such property
would not defray the cost of arranging its sale. (Education Code 17546)

(cf. 3270 - Sule untl Dispusul uf Buulø, Equipmeul und Supplies)

EXhibit HAMILTON UNMTED SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: Hamilton Cify, Califomia

I

2.

L82

Page 116 of L22



Board Bylaws

ACTIONS BY TTIE BOARI)

E(2) e323.2

TJNCONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER

To:

The Governing Board of Hamilton Unified School District has received your cease and desist letter dated (/g1¡9)
alleging that the following described past action taken by the Board violates the Ralph M. Brown Act: (Describe
alleged past action as setforth in the cease and desist letter.)

ln order to avoid unnecessary litigation and without admitting any violation of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Board
hereby unconditionally commits that it will cease, desist from, and not repeat the challenged past action described
above. The Board may rescind this commitment only by a majority vote of its membership taken in open session at
a regular meeting and noticed on its posted agenda as "Rescission of Brown Act Commitment." You will be
provided with written notice, sent by any means or media you provide in response to this message, to whatever
address(es) you speciff, of any intention to consider rescinding this commitment at least 30 days before any such
regular meeting. In the event that this commitment is rescinded, a notice will be delivered to you by the same means
as this commitment, or by mail to an address that you have designated in writing, and you will have the right to
cornmence legal action pwsuant to Government Code 5a960(a).

Sincerely,

(tþue)
[¡tte of Aoar¿ Pres¡

Exhibit HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: Hamilton Cíty, Califomia

PagetlT of!22

183



Board Bylaws

MINUTES AND RECORDINGS

BB 9324(a)

The Governing Board recognizes that maintaining accurate minutes ofBoard meetings provides a rçcord of Board
actions for use by district staffand the public and helps foster public trust in Board governance.

(cf, 9000 - RuIe uf the Bourd)
(cJ. 9005 - Goveraance Standards)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The secreiary oiihe Boarci shaii keep minutes anci recorcí ali oificial Boarci actions. The Board's minuies shaii be
public records and shall be made available to the public upon request. (Education Code 35145, 35163)

(cJ. isa| - Access to Dislrict Recorús)
(cf.9122 - Secretary)
(c¡ 9323.2 - ticrions by the Eoarri)

The minutes shall reflect which members are present and whether a member is not present for part of the meeting
due to late arrival and./or earþ departure.

(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)

In order to ensure that the minutes are focused on Board action, the minutes shall include only a brief summary of
the Board's discussion, but shall not include a verbatim record of the Board's discussion on each agenda topic or the
names of Board members who made specific points during the discussion-

The minrrtes shall inchrrle the snecific lansrrase of esch motion and the nâmes of fhe Roard me.mbers who marle and

seconded the motion.

The minutes shall also report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member present.
(Government Code 54953)

The minutes shall reflect the names of those individuals who comment dwing the meeting's public comment period
as well as the topics they address.

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute a copy of the "unapproved" minutes of the previous meeting(s) u¡ith
the agenda for the next regular meeting. The Board shall approve the minutes as circulated or with necessary
amendments.

Upon approval by the Board, the minutes shall be signed by the clerk and Superintendent.

Official Board minutes and recordings shall be stored in a secure location and shall be retained in accordance with
law.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

r84

Page 118 of t22



BB e324(b)

MINUTES AND RECORDINGS (continued)

Any minutes or recordings kept for Board meetings held in closed session shall be kept separately from the minutes
or recordings of regular and special meetings. Minutes or recordings of closed sessions are not public records.
(Govemment Code 54957.2)

(cf 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

Recording or Broadcasting of Meetings

The district may tape, film, or broadcast any open Board meeting. The Board president shall announce that a

recording or broadcasting is being made at the direction of the Board at the beginning of the meeting and, as

practicable, the recorder or camera shall be placed in plain view of meeting participants.

Any district recording may be erased or destroyed 30 days after the meeting. Recordings made at the direction of the
Board during a meeting are public records and, upon request, shall be made available for inspection by members of
the public on district equipment without charge. (Government Code 54953.5)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35145 Public meetings
35163 Officiøl actions, minutes and journals
3 5 164 l/ote requirements
GOVERNMENT CODE
54952.2 Meeting defined
54953 Meetings
5 4 9 5 3. 5 Audio or video recording of proceedings
5 495 3. 6 Broadcøstíng of proceedings
54957.2 Closed sessions; clerk; minute book
54960 Violations and remedíes
PENAL CODE
632 Unlawful to intentionally record a confidential communication wíthottt consent
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
1 602 0- 1 60 2 7 Classification and retention of records

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws. rev. 2009
Guide to Effective Meetinss, rev. 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA, Agendø Online : http : //unuw. csba. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCIIOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton Cify, California

Page 119 ofL22

185



186



Copy Machine/Business Solutions.Options for HUSD Board Meeting Septemb er 25,2019

-Large company with many clients

-Small Repair team (9 techs for all clients)

-Very small Digital Support Staff (only 2 lT staff members)

-Unknown response times for support and service
red midyear-Staff training

-Contract will not allow us to add or remove equipment as
needed - no flexibility
-Reported poor response times for support and service
-Staff 

'training 
required midyear

technical-Reliant on third

-Not cost-gffective

-Straff training required midyear

-Unknown response times for and service

-Currently meeting needs of the district

-Gontract allows us to add or remove equipment as
needed

-Known prompt service and response time
-lmmediate access to large warehouse of parts in
Chico

-Large experienced and accessible Service and lT
support teams
-No additional staff

-Local Support Team

-Contract allows us to add or remove equipment as
needed

Expensive Option

-Experienced Service and lT team

-Contract allows us to add or remove equipment as
needed

-Mid-sized support team

$188,664.80

$169,800.00

$195,340.00

1,940.00

$37,732.e6

$39,068.00

$42,s88.00

Ray Morgan Company

Advanced Business Solutions

Coastal Business Systems

lnland Business Solutions

H
@\¡



188



Vendor
Ray Morgan Company

Hardware Lease
$1,811.08

B/W (Cost perl
$0.0058

Cost Per Year
$37,732.96

Additional Lease
$0.00

B/W Cost Per Year (2018)

$5,800.00
(BAIV cost x 1,000,000)

Gost per Gontract
$188,664.80

Total Hardware Lease
$1,811.08

Color (Cost perl

$0.0510
Color Cobt Per Year (2018) Total Ctick Gost

$10,200.00 $16,000.00
(Color cost x 200,000)

F
æro



190



Vendor
Advanced Business Solutions

Hardware Lease
$1,580.00

B/W (Gost per)

$0.0050

Cost Per Year
$33,960.00

Additional Lease
$0.00

B/W Cost Per Year (20181

$5,000.00
(BAIV cost x 1,000,000)

Cost per Contract
$169,800.00

Total Hardware Lease
$1,580.00

Color (Gost per)

$0.0500
Color Gost Per Year (2018) Total Click Cost

$10,000.00 $15,000.00
(Color cost x 200,000)

H
\o
P



192



Vendor
Coastal Business Systems

Hardware Lease
$1,330.00

B/W lCost oerì
$0.0060

Cost Per Year
$39,068.00

Additional Lease
$409.00

B/W Gost Per Year (2018)

$6,000.00
(B/\A/ cost x 1,000,000)

Total Hardware Lease
$1,739.00

Color (Gost per)

$0.0610
Golor Gost Per Year (2018) Total Click Cost

$12,200.00 $18,200.00
(Color cost x 200,000)

Cost per Gontract
$195,340.00

H
\o
(Ð



L94



Vendor
lnland Business Solutions

Hardware Lease
$2,199.00

B/W (Cost perl

$o.006o

Cost Per Year
$42,388.00

Additional Lease
$0.00

B/W Cost Per Year (20181

$6,000.00
(B/\tV cost x 1,000,000)

Gost per Contract
$211,940.00

Total Hardware Lease
$2,199.00

Color (Cost perl

$0.0500
Color Cost Per Year (20181 Total Click Cost

$10,000.00 $16,000.00
(Color cost x 200,000)

ts
\o
ul



196



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
July 2019

First Reading HUSD Board Meeting Augusto 28,2019
Second Reading IIUSD Board Meeting Septemberr2Sr2019

Page I of2

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the sample materials and modiff their own policies accordingly.

BP lll2 - MedÍa Relations
(BP revised)

Policy updated to expand the section on "Crisis Communications Plan" to apply to natural disasters, involve
district technologypersonnel in the development of the plan, and expand the contents of the plan. Policy also
updated to encourage the establishment of priorities and key messages for proactive communications with
the media, clarifu that media representatives can be required to register before coming on campus only if the
district has adopted a policy requiring all visitors to register, and clarifu that the only student directory
information that may be released to the media is that information designated by the district in AR 5125.1 -
Release of Directory Information.

AR 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District
(AR revised)

Regulation updated to add statement requiring the use of district procedures for claims against the district
prior to filing a lawsuit. Regulation also defines "limited civil case" as one that is for an amount of $25,000
or less.

BP/AR 3551 - tr'ood Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund
(BP/AR revised)

Policy updated to reflect NEW FEDERAL REGULATION (84 Fed. Reg. 8247) and updated California
Department of Education (CDE) guidance giving districts with an average daily attendance of less than 2,500
greater flexibility in the hiring of food service directors. Policy also consolidatss material on
nondiscrimination toward students who have unpaid meal fees and those who participate in the free and
reduced-price meal program. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 3043, 2018) which permits the
use of cafeteria funds to (1) pay for the purchase of a mobils food facility and (2) supplement the cost of
providing universal breakfast in diskicts that do not provide universal breakfast under a federal program,
provided they submit the required certification to CDE. Regulation also updates section on U.S. Department
of Agriculture (USDA) donated foods to reflect current requirements for the safe storage and control of the
foods. In both policy and regulation, CDE and USDA guidance renumbered when superseded by newer
guidance.

AR4ll7.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports
(AR revised)

Regulation updated pursuant to Education Code 44940 to include a violation or attempted violation of Penal
Code 187 (murder) in the definition of a "mandatory leave of absence offense."

BP 4119.2414219.2414319.24 -Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student fnteractions
(BP added)

New policy addresses the avoidance of unlawful and inappropriate interactions between staff and students,
an employee's responsibility to report another employee's violation of this policy, disciplinary consequences

197



for staff, referral to law enforccment whcn appropriate, the requirement to post the code of conduct on school
and/or district websites, and examples of conduct that are inappropriate or can create t¡e appearance of
impropriety.

POLICY GUIDE SHEET
Juty 2019

Page 2 of3

BP/ÄR 4218 - DÍsmissaVSuspension/Disciplinary Action
(BP addçü AR revised)

Ncr¡¡ nnlinr¡ cnnfei¡s mqte¡nl fnmeilr¡ in Â R ncttqinino fn hoqr¡l anfinn< in ¿iic.iñliñqn¡ hearinos fnr

classified employees and new material consisteut with BP 4118 - DismissaVSuspension/Disciplinary Action
for certificated employees. Policy also reflects NEW LAW {AB 2234,2018) which requires the board to
cieiegate its authoriiy ¡o an acÍministralive iaw judge in cases invoiving aiiegations of egregious misconeÍuci
with a minor. Regulation updates and consolidates the causes for disciplinary action. Regulation also adds
tho .o^".i-o-oñ+ f^ aêf a tlmaliaa L.' *'Li^l" +ho o--l^.'oo ñâr' 'a^rraa+ ô haâriñô rr'lrinL mrrc+ kp ¡nf laca fËqn

E gv9¡4Þ,

five days after serving notico upon the employee. Section on "Compulsory Leave of Absence" expanded to
define "mandatory" and "optional" leave of absence offenses and reflect requirements ps¡þining to extension
of the leave and compensation during the leave. Material pertaining to merit system districts moved to BP/AR
4218.1 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System).

198



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Community Relations BP 1112(a)

MEDIA RELATIONS

Note: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice.

As part of building positive media relations, the district may consider presenting awards to media representatives who have
helped support district goals and programs. See BP 1150 - Commendations and Awards. The district may also nominate
journalists for CSBA's Golden Quill Award, which recognÍzes fair, insightful, and accurate reporting of the objectives,

and related to schools.

The Governing Board respects the public's desire for and right to information and recognizes that the media
significantly influence the community's understanding of school programs, student achievemento and school
safefy. In order to develop and maintain positive media relations, the Board and the-Superintendent desire-te
shall reasonably accommodate media requests for information and te-provide accurate, reliable, and timely
information.

In conjunction with the Superintendent or designee, the Board shall periodically establish priorities and
key messages for proactively communicating with the media regarding current district issueso activities, or
needs.

(cl, 0400 - Comprehensíve Pløns)
(cÍ, 0450 - Comprehensíve Søfety Plan)
(cl, 0460 - Local Control ønd Accountøbilíty Pløn)
(cf, 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)
(cf, I100 - Communicqtionwíth the Public)
(cf, I 160 - Political Processes)

Media representatives are welcome at all public Board meetings and shall receive meeting agendas upon request
in accordance with Board policy.

(cl, 9321 - Closed Sessíon)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materiøls)

Note: Penal Code 627.2 requires all "outsiders" to register upon entering school grounds during school hours. Pursuant to Penal
Code 627.I, media representatives are not defined as "outsiders." However, an the Attomey General has opined €piÊioa (95 79
ops.Cal.Attv'Gen.5€958(1996))+as-epined-that'pursrranttoEducationCode322l2,

districts are ¿uthorized to prevent
interference with the orderly educational activities of the school, which may include restricting media representatives in the
same manner that access by the general public may be limited (e.g., registration or accompaniment by a staff member when on school
grounds). +geregerer*According to the Attorney General opinion, a district that has developed a policy requiring all members
of the general public, both visitors and outsiders, to register upon entering school groundqedy-then may similarly require media
representatives

MEDIA RELATIONS (continued)

BP 1112(b)

199



+eqËir€d to register before corning on campus. Although Attomey General optmons are not brncirng on the courts, tiley are

generally afforded deference when there is no specific statutory or case law to the contrary. See BP/AR 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders
f^- ^^+;^-- -^^^-Å t- ^ --^l-++a+i¡¡fv¡ vl/t¡ut¡Ð r!Ë4^ guË rvé¡Ðu4rrvu.

ís
re spe€ige staû*tery €r €ase The following optional paragraph is only for use ent¡by districts that require all

'¡isitors to register upon entering schoo! grounds;, and does uot apply to districts that only require outsiders to regístcr" Districts
should ensure with this and seeBP 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders.

Media representatives, like all other visitors, shall register immediately upon entering any school building or
grounds when school is in scssion.

(cf. 1250 - I/isttors/Outsíders)
(cJ. 35!5.2 - Disruptiois)

Staffmayprovidethemediawithstudentdirectoryinformation,.ameeÊa
as identilieri in ÂR 5125.1 - Release of

Directory Information, unless the studentls parørtlguardian has submitted a written reqlrest that such infsrmation
not be disciosed. Lne district shaii not reiease other student records or personaüy irientiÍiabie siudent
information that is private or confidential as required by law, Board polic5 or administrative regulation. Neether

parent/g*ardira*pemissie*

^'.¿n:..¿ D--.,-.!.\í!j. !J4U - ITCCeSS t0 L,!l't{¿c, !'--{çíiíuü
(cf, 4119.2 j/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorízed Release of ConfidentiaUPrivileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Inþrmation)
(cJ: 9010 - Public Statements)
/^f ô2Jf 1 ¡:l^--.1 Q^--:^.- ,l-a:^.-^ ^-,1 D^-^-j-\

(cf, 9324 - Minutes and Recordíngs)

Interviewing and Photographing Students

Note: In 95 79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 509 58 (1996), the Attorney General stated that, because students have a constitutional right to
free speech, school administrators may not require prior written parental permission before allowing media representatives to
interview particular students on aampus. However, Education Code 48907 and 48950 and case law hasåeld{åå* clarify that the
district may adopt reasonable provisions for the time, place, and manner in which free expression may occur within the
district's jurisdiction.

rvbetlrer iÉ+tems frem time, plaee er Þpe ef behaier Êrat€rially disrspts seheel er invel¡es sËbstantiel diserd€r er iavasien ef
@Therefore,insomecircumstanceS(e.g.,interviewsduringclasstimeorinterviewsthatidentifuotherstudents
by name), it may be appropriate to limit the student's ability to talk with the media on campus. Because this is a complex area of
law, districts should consult with legal counsel before adopting a policy or practice that may limit students' constitutional rights.

BP 1lt2(c)

MEDIA RÐLATIONS (continued)

Neither the Attomey General opinion nor case law considers the rights of media to photograph students on school grounds. However,
the same concerns raised with regard to student interviews, such as a substantial ma*edal-disruption to the orderly operation of
school or a substærti¿l éiserderfuvasion of the rights of others, including privacy rights, may exist with rcgard to photos.

Furthermore, ;+s+tear*aq in some cases, the publishing of a photo may affect student safety, orfri¡¿a€y+ights-€€r such as when
a student's r¡åsse-attendance is concealed from a parent due to a domestic violence restraining order). Districts should consult with
legal counsel before adopting a policy or practice that may limit the photographing of students by the media.

240



The should be revised to reflect district

The district shall not impose restraints on students' right to speak freely with media representatives at-these-times
. However, interviewsing and photographing ef students

may shall not create substantial dis'erd€r disruption to the orderly operation of the school or impinge on the
rightsef-e+hersorsafetyofstudents.Therefore,thedistrÍctshalI
encourage media representatives who wish to interview or photograph students at school-are+trengþ
€a€eürage+to make prior arrangønents with the principal. 

^t 
their diseretienr p

ive$,

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom ofSpeech/Expression)

}Iewever; the såffe een€e

lÈ

tn er¿er te preteet tlre erlv
iæee

When intervierv:ng er phstegraphing a speeial edueatien str*dent; he/she shall net be identi{ied as +speeial
issiotu

Media M Contacts/Spokespersons

Note: The following section should be revised to reflect district practice.

Iûerfuto heþ deve ive
rne¿ia eerrrru*rieatiens plæ

BP 1112(d)

MEDIARELATIONS (continued)

te; infermatien retrated te distriet pregrarns ard needs; stedent awards; seheel aeeemplislrnents arrd events ef
æeeial-i*teres+

The pla+shatl+peeify Superintendent or designee shall identify the district's andlor site's primary media contact
to whom all media inquiries shall be routed. Spokespersons designated to speak to the media on behalf of the
district include the Board president, Superintendento an*public information officer, or dÍstrict communications
director. Other Board members and/or staff may be asked by the Superintendent or designee to speak to the
media on a case-by-case basis, depending on their expertise on an issue or appropriateness gÍven a particular
situation.

20r



The Superintendent or designee shall provide training on effective media relations to all designated
spokespersoas"

(cf. 9240 - Board Training)

Crisis Communications Plan

Note: The following optional scction may be revised to reflect district practice. CSBA recommends that districts develop a crisis
communications plan to help ensure that accurats and timely information is provided to students, parents/guarciians, the community,
and the media during a crisís or natural disaster. This crisis plan may be a separate document or may be incorporated into otlrer
safety plans such as the district's comprehensive safely plan (see AR- 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) and/or emergeney and

disaster preparedness plan (see AR 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Prepareciness Pian).

The fell+rvine eptiennl seetien sheuld be modified te refleet distriet preetiee'

nwing 
" 

distwbart€e er €risis
lreSuperintendentCIrdesigneeshalldevelopstrategiesforw-orking

with the media to provide timely and accurate information to students, parents/guardians, and the community
during a crisis or natural disaster.
retaying this irfoffiatie

ien
isis'ThecrisiscommunicationSp1anmayinc1ude,butûotbelimitedto,

identification of a media center{eeatioâ, strategies for press conference logistics, and development and
integration of both internal and external notification systems, including public address systcms, social media,
web site postings, and text alerts. i€s"

BP 1112(e)

MEDIARELATIONS (continued)

(cf, 0450 - Comprehensive Safety PIan)
(cJ:, 1113 - Dßtrict ønd School lVeb Sítes)
(cf, 1114 - District-Sponsored Socíøl Medíø)
(cf. 35 16 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

deYetepanætrefboth int ies.

The Superintendent or designee shall include local law enforcement, and media representativeso and district
technology personnel in the crisis planning process.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32210-32212 Wíllful disturbance of public school or meeting
3 5 144 Special meetíngs
35145 Public meetings
3 5 I 60 Authority of governing boards
3 5 I 72 Promotional activities
48907 Freedom of speech ønd press
48950 Prohíbitíon øgøinst dßcíplínøry øctíon for ft.rst ømendment speech

202



49061 DeJinítíon of directory ínformøtìon
49 0 73 Directory informatíon
EVIDENCE CODE
1070 Refusal to disclose news source
PENAL CODE
627-627.10 Access to school premises
ANITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
12329 Fømþ edacatìonul and prívacy ríghts
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.3 Definítìon of dírectory ínformutíon
COURT DECISIONS
Looez v. Tulare Joint Union Hish School District. (1995) 34 Cal.App.4th 1302
ATTO RNEY G E NE RAL O P INIO NS
95 79 Ops.Cal.Att.v.Gen.549 58 (1996)

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

(t0te6 7t01) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Business and Noninstructional Operations

CLAIMS AND ACTIONS AGAINST THE DISTRICT

AR 3320(a)

Note: The Goven:ment Claims Act (Government Code 810-996.6) sets forth prelitigation requirements and deadlines for claims
against public entities, including school districts. In Citv of Stockton v. Superior Court, the California Supreme Court held that the
claim requirements in Government Code 900-915.4 also apply to claims for breach of contract.

Because a district's insurance carrier or joint powers authority (JPA) may require the district to comply with certain claims
management conditions as part of the district's contractual coverage obligation, it is strongly recommended that this administrative
regulation be reviewed for consistency with any applicable conditions ofcoverage. A district's failure to follow those contractual
conditions may result in a loss of coverage benefits. The district's risk manager and legal counsel should also be consulted, as

appropriate.

Pursuant to Government Code 935, district claims procedures may include a requirement that a claim be presented and
acted upon in accordance with those procedures as a prerequisite to a lawsuit. Failure to include such a requÍrement may

the district to increased

Unless otherwise provided by law, prior to filing a lawsuit against the dÍstrict for money or damages, a
written claim shall be filed in accordance with the following administrative regulation.

Time Limitations

Note: Items #1-4 bclow list timelines for claims pursuant to the Government Claims Act and other applicable statutes. As-ar¡sad€d
PursuanttoGovemmentCode935,thedistrict'sauthority@

a4is+ri* to adopt local claims presentation procedures for causes of action which are excepted from the Government Claims Act by
GovemmentCode905@isnotapplicabletothoseexceptedcausesofactÍonwhichhavetheirclaims

203



presentation procedures specified in þ other stafirtes or regulationso such as deesre+appþ+e childhood sexual abuse. Rather,
claims for childhood sexual abuse are the timelines and in Code of Civil Procedure 340.1

The following time limitations appiy to claims againsi the district:

1 Claims for money or damages reiating to childhood sexual abuse or any other cause of action +\¡hieltis
specifically excepted from the Government Claims Act by Government Code 905 and for which
ge{¡effi€d+y a statute or regulation provides a claÍms presentation procedurq-i+eluChg=#ldåeeé

ien
Msha11befiledinaccordancewiththeapplicablegoVerningstatuteorregulation.
(Govcrnmcnt Code 905, 935)

(cf, 4 1 5 7. 1 /4 2 5 7. I /4 3 5 7. 1 - Wor k-Re løte d Injuúe $
@f.' 5141.4 - Chíltl Ab;use Preventíon and Rèþortíng)

AR 3320(b)

CLaIIviS AND aCTIOIIS AGA¡I.{ST THE DISTR.ICT (continueci)

2. In accordance with the Governing Board's authoritypursuant to Govcrnmcnt Codc 935, claims formoney
or damages which relate to any cause of action specifically excepted from the Government Claims Act by
Government Code 905 br*t and which are not governed by any other claims presentation statute or
regulation shall be filed not later than six months after the accrual of the cause of action. (Government
Code 905, 935)

Claims for money or damages relating to a cause of action for death or þr injury to person, personal
property, or growing crops shall be presented to the eeveming Board not later than six months after the
accrual of the cause of action. (Govemment Code 911.2)

Claims for money or damages relating to any other cause of action shall be filed not later than one year

after the accrual of the eause of action. (Government Code 9II.2)

Receipt of Claims

A claim, any amendment thereto, or an application to present a late claim shall be deemed presented and received
when delivered to the district office or deposited in a post office, mailbox, sub-post office, substation, mail chute,

or other similar facility maintained by the U.S. government, in a sealed envelope properly addressed to the distriot
office with postage paid, or when otherwise actually received in the district office or by the Board secretary or
clerk. (Government Code 915, 915.2)

J

4

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 935, a district may establish its own procedure for the present-ation of those claims which a¡e

excluded from the Government Claims Act as specified in Govenrment Code 905 and which are not governed by any other
applicable statutes or regulations. Optional item #2 belcv¿ is for use by any district whose board has chcsen to exercise the
authority to establish district procedures for such claims; see the accompanying Board policy . Item #2 provides six months as the

time limitation for filing such claims, which is consistent with the requirement in Government Code 935 that the disrict's procedure

not require a shorter time for presentation of a claim than the time specified in Government Code 911.2. However, the Governing
Board has the discretion to adopt a more flexible time limitaticn and may i¡crease the amount of time allolved for filing such claims.
If the Board adopts a more flexible time limitation, item #2 should be revised accordingly.

If a claimant misses a deadline for a claim required to be submitted in accordance with item #2 or #3 below, h€ffi the claimant
may present an application to present a late claim pursuant to Government Code 911.4; see section below entitled "Late Claims."

204



Notc: In most circutnstances, a district's insurance provider or JPA is responsible for claims management, including investigating,
defending, and managing a district's response to a claim presented under the Government Claims Act. The following paragraph
requires the Superintendent or designee to immediately forward any claims received to the district's JPA or insurance provider in
order to ensure u/ith conditions of

I

2

J

AR 3320(c)

CLAIMS AND ACTIONS AGAINST THE DISTRICT (continued)

Upon receipt of a claim against the district pursuant to the Government Claims Act, the Superintendent or
designee shall promptly provide written notice to the district's joint powers authority or insurance carrier in
accordance with the applicable conditions of coverage.

Review of Contents of the Claim

Note: Most JPAs and insurance carriers provide a claim form. The person submitting the claim need not use the claim form provided
by the district but, pursuant to Government Code 910 and 910.2, the claim must contain a signature and all the information listed
below.

The Superintendent or designee shall review any claim received to ensure that the claim contains all of the
following information as specified in Govemment Code 910 and910.2:

The name and post office address of the claimant

The post office address to which the person presenting the claim desires notices to be sent

The date, place, and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim
asserted

A general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage, or loss incurred insofar as it may
be known at the time of presentation of the claim

The name(s) of the district employee(s) causing the injury, damage, or loss, if known

The amount claimed if it totals less than $10,000, including the estimated amount of any prospective
injury, damage, or loss, insofar as it may be known at the time of the claim, together with the basis of
computation of the amount claimed. If the amount claimed exceeds $10,000, the dollar amount shall not
be included in the claim and the claimant shall indicate whether the claim is a limited civil case of $250000
or less.

7. The signature of the claimant or the person acting on his1htr the claimant's behalf

Notice of Claim Insufficiency

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 9 I I , if the district, or the JPA or insurance carrier acting on the district's behalf, fails to give
notice that the claim is insufficient, as below, then the district not later raise that issue as a defense to the claim.

If a claim is found insufficient or not to satisfu the form requirements under Government Code 910 and 910.2,
the Board or its designee shall, within 20 days of receipt of the claim, personally deliver or mail to the claimant,

4

5

6

205



at the address stated in the claim or application, a notice that states the particular defects or omission in the claim.
((1a,,o*^^-+ (1^Å^ Oln A O1< /4\
\vvvviru¡¡w¡¡t vvuv t Lv.a, t LJ.l,

AR 3320(d)

CLAIMS AND ACTIONS AGAINST THE DISTRICT (continued)

Note: Districts should be cautious before rejecting a claim bocause of insufficiency of information and consult legal counsel and/or
the district's JPA or insurance provider, as appropriate. Courts have held that a claim is sufficient as long as enough information is
disclosed to aliow the district to conducl an rn of the ciaim's merits

The Board shall not act upon the claim until at least 15 days after such notice is given. (Government Code 910.8)

Amendment to Claims

fI/:¿L.:- ¡L^ ¿-'---- 1;---,1&- --",--..:.¡,-,f :- tL.",...,.+:,.- ll'T.:*,. T:*:1.,+:..*,,il ,.L...,,. ..* --:..- r,- Ã-,.1 ,.,.4.:,"- L., tL- E¡,..'.,1VVlLlUll tllç tllll9 ¡lltlflS Pfuvf(l(j(l lll Llltj SttULlUll lllllg lJllllllalllullù alUUVtt ()L PIrUl LU llllcll <lvLlt lI LrJ Luv uvqut

whichever is later, a claim may be amended if as amørded, it relates to the same transaction or occutrence which
gave rise to the original claim. (Government Code 910.6)

Late Claims

Notc: The reference to item #2 n the following paragraph should be deleted if the district has not established district procedures
pursuant to Government Code 935 for ciaims ihat are specihcaiiy exempted irr Government Code 9û5 or adopted a time iir-úiation
that is not less than one year (see the accompanying Board policy and item#2 in thc section "Time Limitations" above).

For claims under iiems #2 and #3 in ihe seciion "Time L,imita-tions" above, any person who presents a claim later
than six months after the accrual of the cause of action shall present, along with the claim, an application to
present alate claim. Such claim and the application to present alate claim shall be presented not later than one
year after the accrual of the cause of action. (Government Code 905 , 911 .4)

Note: If the claim is presented late and is not accompanied by an application to present a late claim, thc Board or its agent should
notifu the claimant that "no action" was taken because the claim was presented late. If the Board were to state that the claim was

" this would indicate that the Board had the ofthe late claim and taken action to reject it.

If the claim is presented late and is not accompanied by an application to present a late claim, the Board or its
designee may, within 45 days, give written notice that the claim was not presented timely and that it is being
returned without further action. (Government Code 911.3)

The Board shall grant or deny the application to present a late claim within 45 days after it is presented. This 45-
day period may be extended by written agreement of the claimant and the Board provided that such agreement is
made before the expiration of the 45-day period. (Govemment Code 9i 1.6)

AR 3320(e)

CLAIMS AND ACTIONS AGAINST THE DISTRICT (continued)

The Board shall grant the application to present a late claim where one or more of the following conditions are

applicable: (Government Code 91 1.6)

206



I The failure to present the claim was through mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect and the
district was not prejudiced in its defense regarding the claim by the claimant's failure to present the claim
within the time limit.

The person who sustained the alleged injury, damage, or loss was a minor during all of the time specified
for presentation of the claim.

The person who sustained the alleged injury, damage, or loss was physically or mentally incapacitated
during all of the time specified for presentation of the claim and the disability was the reason helshe the
person failed to present the claim.

The person who sustained the alleged injury, damage, or loss died before the expiration of the time
specified for the presentation of the claim.

If the application to present a late claim is denied, the claimant shall be given notice in substantially the same
form as set forth in Government Code 911.8. (Government Code 911.8)

If the Board does not take action on the application to present a late claim within 45 days, the application shall be
deemed to have been denied on the 45th day unless the time period has been extended, in which case it shall be
denied on the last day of the period specified in the extension agreernent. (Government Code 911.6)

Action on Claims

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 945.6, if If the Board formally acts to reject a claim and provides notice of such rejection,
the claimant has only six months from the rejection to initiate a lawsuit. If the Board takes no action or fails to provide written
noticerejectingtheclaim,theclaimantthenhastwoyearStoinitiateasuitagainstthe
district. The notice of rejection must comply with the notification requirements of Government Code 913 unless the claim has no
address on it.

Although the Board takes final action on claims as specified below, such action is based on the evaluation of the claim by the district's
lnsurance or JPA.

Within 45 days after the presentation or amendment of a claim, the Board shall take action on the claim. This
time limit may be extended by written agreement between the district and the claimant before the expiration of
the 45-day period. If the 45-day period has expired, the time limit may be extended if legal action has not
coÍrmenced or been barred by legal limitations. (Govemment Code 912.4)

AR 3320(Ð

CLAIMS AND ACTIONS AGAINST THE DISTRICT (continued)

The Board may act on the claim in one of the following ways: (Government Code 912-4,912.6)

1. If the Board finds that the claim is not a proper charge against the district, the claim shall be rejected.

2. If the Board finds that the claim is a proper charge against the district and is for an amount justly due, the
claim shall be allowed.

2.

a
J

4.

207



J If the Board finds that the claim is a proper charge against the district but is for an amount greater than is
iusrlv rirre fhe Roarul shall eifher reiecf the claim or allow it in the amount iustlv due and reiect it as to the

' 'J

balance.

4. If legal liability of the district or the amount justly due is disputed, the Board may reject or compromlse

the claim.

5. If the Board takes no action on the claim, the claim shall bc dccrncd rejected.

If the Board allows the claim in whole or in part or compromises the claim and the claimant accepts the amount

allowed or offered to settle the claim, the Board rnay require the claiurant to accept it in settlernent of the entire
^l^:* /l'\^-.**^-+ f1^Å^ ô1 't Á\ur4lur. (\JUvçrrllrrlJllL \,rrr,r9 7 tL.v)

The Board or its designee shall ira.nsmit to the elaimant written notiee of aotion ta,ken or of inaetion wfteh is
deemed rejection. The notice shall be in the form set forth in Govemment Code 913 and shall either be personally

delivered or -¡nailed to thre address staied in ihe clairn or applicaiion. {Governmerrt Code 9i3, 915.4)

(7n8 r0lt8) 7lr9

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691

All rights rese'¡ved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Business and Noninstructional Operations

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND

BP 3551(a)

Note: The following policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)

Memorandum SP 46-2016, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Brealdast Program (42 USC l75l-1769i,
1713) arc mandated to adopt policy addressing delinquent meal charges; see the section "Meal Sales" below and the accompanying

administrative regulation.

Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.9,210.14, and220.7, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast program must

maintain a nonprofit school food service program. Revenues received through the program may be used for the operation or

improvement of the food service program, but not to construct buildings. Revenues also may not be used to purchase land or

buildings, unless otherwise approved by the USDA. Authorized expenditures are specifïed in Education Code 38101 and defined

in the Califomia of Education's

2A8



The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit program. To ensure
program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or designee shall centralize and direct the
purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the
district.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf, 3311 - BidÐ
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutritíon Program)
(cf 3552 - Summer Meal Program)
(cf 5030 - Student llellness)

Note: The followÍng paragraph is for use by districts that participate in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program
and may be adapted for use by other districts. Pursuant to 42 USC 1776 and 7 CFR 210.30, as amended by 84 Fed. Reg.8247,
th€-USDA has established minimum professional standards for food service persennel directors and granted CDE the authority
toadoptmoreflexiblestandardsfordistrictswithaveragedailyattendanceoflessthan2,500.@

ize whenh#hg
ie"

.SeeCDE'sNutrÍtionServicesDivisionManagementBulletinr0-2019
for information about state standards.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all-food service pæsenael director(s) possess the requireé
qualifications required by 7 CFR 210.30 and California Department of Education (CDE) standards. and

þf. a23I - StaffDevelopment)

þf. a33l - StaffDevelopment)

BP 3ss1(b)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program. Pursuant
to 42 USC 1776, such districts must ensure that food service personnel and other appropriate personnel who conduct or oversee
administrative procedures receive training on administrative practices (i.e., training in application, certification, verification, meal
counting, and meal claiming procedures) at least once each year. In addition, all food service personnel are required to receive
annual training that (1) is designed to improve the accuracy of approvals for free and reduced-price meals and the identification of
reimbursable meals at the point of service and(2) includes modules on nutrition, health and food safety standards and methodologies,
and any other appropriate topics as determined by the U.S. Secretary of Agriculture. The CDE provides online training that meets
these see the.CDE's web site.

At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who conduct or oversee
administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive training provided by the €elifumia
@CDE). (42USC|776)

Meal Sales

Note: The following section may be revised by districts that have one or more high-poverty schools that operate under the federal
universal meal service provision (42 USC 1759a), which provides breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to all students at the school.
For further information, see BPIA&3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals.

Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or members of the fund or
association maintaining the cafeteria. (Education Code 38082)

249



q ¡111i+i a¡ el

pçrsons other than those listed above. CDE s Nutrition Services Division Managcmelrl Bulleti¡r Ntl" 00-11 I states that the Board's

policy or resolutiot mr:st speciry the me¿lns for servrng those persons and indicates tåat ushg fuudu Êom úre National School Lunch

or Breakfast Program to serv€ any nonstudent would be contrary to program goals. The following optional paragraph is for districts

that havc such a resolution and should be revised to reflect district

in addition, meals may"ocsold to nonsfudents, ineludingparentsiguarelians" voluntscrs, students'siblings, or other

individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any meals served to nonstudents shall not be subsidized

by fetleral or state reimbursernents, food service revenues, or U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 38084, thc district may determine meal prices consistent" with the goal of paying r¡e costs of
maintaining the cafetcrias (exclusive oithe costs of housing and equipping cafeterias or other costs determined by Board resoiution,

which are paid from district funds othe¡ than the cafeteria fundo pursuant to Education Code 38100).

Students who meet federal eligibility criteria for the reduced-price meal program cannot be charged more than the amounts listed in
42 USC 1758 and 1773; seeAR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. For information about setting prices for fuIl-price meals, see

42 f-fSC 175C aud CDE s N.utntion Ser-siees Di'¡sron Buiietin U$ÞA-SNP-+æ[2 l2-2t18

DD a<<l ¡'^\Dt JJJ L\wt

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUI\D (continued)

Meal prices, as recofilmended by the Superinterident or designee and approved by the Board, shall be based on

the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 38084 and 42USC 1760. Students who

âre enrolled in the free or redu-eed-prioe area,l progæm shali receive meals free of eharge or at a reduced price in
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf 3553 - Free and Reduced Príce Meals)

Note: Pursuant to USDA Memorandum SP 46-2016, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program

are mandated to have a written and clearly communic¿tetl me¿l uhargu puliuy which iucludes, but is n'¡t limitcd to, policy on thc

collection of delinquent meal charge debt. See the accompanying administrative regulation for additional l¡nguage fulfilling this

mandate.

The Superintendent or designee shall sstablish strategies and procedures for the collection of meal payments,

including delinquent meal payffrents. Such procedures shall conform with BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced

Price Meals, 2 CFR 200.426, and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee shall clearly

communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this policy and the

accompanying administrative regulation available to the public pursuant to Education Code 49557.5.

Note: Education Code 49557.5 requires any distrÍct that participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program
to ensure that students wÍth unpaid meal fees are not shamed or treated differently than other students. For further
information,seePus¡*anf4eCDE'sNutri.tionSeF/icesÐivisionManagementBulletinSNP-03-2017@
petteymuseenswe *atsæ
ã's ad¿ed by SB 250

In addition, Education Code 49557 requires the Board to approve a plan that effiures students eligible to receive frce or reduced-

price meals are not treated diffbrently hom other students, includrng, but not limited to, assurance that eligible students will not be

overtly identiflred by the use of special tokens, tickets, or any other means. For additional language addressing this requirement, see

BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals.

2L0



The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a student whose parent/guardian has unpaid school meal fees or
a student who is enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program is not overtly identified; by the use of
special tokens, tickets, or other means and is not shamed, treated differently, or served a meal that differs from
the meal served to other students. (Education Code 49557,49557.5)

Nete: Edeeatien eede 19557 reqr¡ires tlre Beard te appreve aplan that ensures sÊudents eligible te reeeile &ee er redneed priee

BP 3ss1(d)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

(cf 0410 - Nondiscrimínation in District Programs and Activtties)
(cÍ, 0415 - Equíty)

Cafeteria Fund

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 38090, money received for the sale of food or for any services performed by the cafeterias may
be paid into the county treasury to the credit of a "cafeteria fund" for the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's general fund.

Note: Education Code 38103 allows the Board, at its discretion and with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools who
is responsible for a countywide payrolVretirement system under Education Co de 42646, to have wages, salaries, and benefits of food
servlce either from the district's tund or from the district's cafeteria fund1

OPTION L: The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the dishict's general
fund. At any time, the Board may order reimbursement from the district's cafeteria fund for these payments in
amounts prescribed by the Board and not exceeding the costs actually incurred. (Education Code 38103)

OPTION 2: The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria fund.
(Education Code 38103)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 2 CFR ParI200, Appendix VII and USDA
guidance, Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities, provide information regarding allowable
indirect costs that may be charged to the nonprofit school food service account. Also see the accompanying administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through school meal programs
are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or improvement of food services and reasonable and
necessary indirect program costs as allowed by law.

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)

kf. 3a00 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

kf. 3a60 - Financial Reports and Accountabilíty)

2LT



BP 3551(e)

FOOD SERYICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

lìnnfro¡fc .";+l' lì"+.:¡f a Sanrinacvvuù¡ 4vaù vYla4 vuaütuw ull Yrlvù

Note: The following section is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 45103.5, the district is authorized to contract for consulting
services related to food service management . 42 USC 17 58, 7 CFR 2 10. 16, and Education Code 45103.5 authorize a district, under
specified conditions and with approvai of the CÐE, to contract with a food service management company to manage its food service

in one or more of its schools. See the administrative for related

With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting services or management
services in one or more district schools. (Education Code 45103.5;42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16)

(cf. 33i2 - Contracís)
(cf. 3600 - Consultants)

Procurement of Foodso Equipment and Supplies

Note: The following two paragraphs rsflect requirements for districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast
Program. Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.21, districts are required to comply with all requirements for purchasing commercial food products

servedintleschoo1mea1programs,inc1udingthoseoutlinedintheBuyAmericanprovision.@UsDA
Memorandum SP 38-2017 clarifies that a district participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program or any
entity purchasing food on its behalf must, to the maximum extent practicable, purchase domestically grown and processed foods, as

defined. According to U$DA the Memorandum 8P-141ÇL6, a domestic commodity or product is deemed to be "substantially using"
dornestic nsricuitrrrai commnrlities r,r¡hen nver 5l ner"cent of the fin"l nrneesserf nrnrfrrcf consists of aoricuihrrai cOmmOdities

produced in the United St¿tes.

Limited exceptions to the Buy American requirement are described in USDA Memorandum SP 38-2017. If the district is using one
of these exceptions, it must maintain documentation justifiiing the exception(s).

PursuanttoEducationCode49563,CDEisrequiredtomakeresources,
requirements, and best practices related to the Buy American provision available on its web site and to providç districts with related

USDA or AS are issued.

To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district or by any entity
purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. Dornestic cornmodíty or producl means
an agricultural commodity that is produced in the United States and afood product that is processed in the United
States substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States. (42 USC 1760;7 CFR
2r0.2r)

A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program only as a last resort
when the product is not produced or manufacfured in the United States in sufficient and reasonable quantities of
a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids reveal

BP 3ss1(Ð

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

212



the costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. In such cases, the
Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justiÛring the use of the exception.

Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural product grown in California before accepting
a bid or price for an agricultural product grown outside the state, if the quality of the California-grortrn product is
comparable and the bid or price does not exceed the lowest bid or price of a product produced outside the state.
(Food and Agriculture Code 58595)

Note:PursuanttoPublicContractCode20111,districtsparticipatinginafederally
funded child nutrition program, such as the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program, must comply with the federal
procurement standards of 2 CFR 200.318-200.326 tnregard to bid solicitations and awards. Also see BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant
Funds. Districts that do not in such a may revise the

Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of the district's child
nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract Code 2000, shall be consistent with the
federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-200.326. Awards shall be let to the most responsive and
responsible party.Price shall be the primary consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such
an award. (Public Contract Code 20111)

Program Monitoring and Evaluation

The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports regarding revenues
and expenditures related to the food service program.

Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that have one or more schools participating in the National School Lunch
Program, School Breakfast Program, Seamless Summer Feeding Option, and/or other federal meal program. The state monitoring
process (the Administrative Review) includes a review of district compliance with requirements for federal meal programs, including
a review of resource management in the food service program as provided in the following paragraph. Each district is reviewed at
least once every three years. See the-CDE's nutrition services web site for a current list of documents that may be requested for the
review.

During the Administrative Review, CDE will review district policies on charge accounts, altemate meals, unpaid meal charges, and
for of these

The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the Administrative Review
conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food

BP 3ss1(g)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

service program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school food service account,
meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, indirect costs, and USDA foods.

(cf 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

2L3



Legal Reference:
DI\f t/1 trfr't^r /-t1r\8,LUVVãaavlt VVUL

3 8080- 3 80 86. I Culeter ia, es tublishntent und use
38090-38095 Cøfeterias, funds and accounts
3 8 I 00- 3 I I 0 3 C afeterias, allocøtion of charges
42 646 Alternate payroll procedure
45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions
49490-49493 School brealcføst and lunch programs
49500-49505 School meais

W¡ee*
49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students, especíaþ:
49 5 5 0. 5 Uníversal breøkføst
495 54 Contruct þr services
49580-4958 I Food recovery program
FOOD AND AGKICULTURE CODE
5B-5 95 Pr{erence for eaftfo7nit.g'rown øgricaitaral producis
HEÁLTH AÌ\íD SAFETí CADE
I13700-I 14437 California Retaíl Food Code
(UÞLIL LU]VIIIALI LWUÞ
ZnAnOZ nnpu^n" bU¿rrt
201I I Contracts
CADE OF REGÚ-L.,iTiOií5, îÍTLE 5
I 5550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
t,r< I ta<ô: e^L^^l 1",,^^L --^----t / J t- t / u 7J úçf auuú auttçrl Pt uét Ø¡r,J

I 77 1 - I 79 Ì Child nutrition, including:
I 7 7 3 School breøldast program
tvuil !'v:-J=zy_!

n056 l"dfr*t *ttt, d"rt"ltit"
2 00.3183 I 7-2 00. 3 26 Procurement standards
2 00.400-200.47 5 Cost principles
200 Appendix VII Indirect cost proposals
înnq nF rrFntrP. Ár pqrlf rf ÁTfn^rs TrTr F 7

2 I 0. I -2 I 0.3 I National School Lunch Progrøm
2 2 0. I -2 2 0. 2 I Natíonal School Breølcfast Pro gram
250. l-250.70 USDA foods

Management Resources: (see next page)

BP 3ss1(h)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

Management Resources:
CALIFABNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIANS
California School Accountins Manual
Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual
Professionøl Støndørds ín the SNP ønd New Híríng Flexìbílþ, NSD Management Bulletín, SNP-10-2019, ApríI 2019
Pøíd Lunch Equíty Requírement ønd Cølculøtion Tool, NSD Manøgement Bulletín, SNP-12-2018, Møy 2018
Cløríficøtíonfor the Use of Alternate Meals ín the Nøtionøl School Lunch ønd School Breøkfast Progrøms, ønd Addítíonøl
Guidønce on the Handlìng of Anpaid Meal Chørges, NSD Manøgement Bulletin, SNP-03-2018, Februøry 2018
Storage and Inventory Mønagement of U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods, NSD Management Bulletin, FDP-01-2018,
January 2018
Unpaid Meal Charges: Locøl Meal Charge Policies, ClariJìcation on Collection of Delínquent Meal Pøyments, and Excess

Student Account Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2017, April 2017

2L4



Procurìng ønd Monitoring of Food Servíce Manøgement Contrøcts, NSD Mønagement Bulletin, SNP-13-2015

ffid the Heftdltn
Cafeteria Funds--Allowqble Uses, NSD Mønagement Bulletin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013
Peid Lbtí,eb Eqait 'kqutue
Adult and S¡bling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breaffist Programs, NSD Manøgement Bulletin, 00-III,
July 2000
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGNCULTURE PUBLICATIONS
FAQs About School Meals
Compliønce wíth ønd Enforcement of the Buy Amerícøn Provision in the Nøtíonal School Lunch Progrøm, SP 38-2017,
fune 2017
Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Chøllenge: Proven Stratesies -from Our Natíon's Schools. Sqtæber10léMøy 2017
Unpøid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017
Indirect Costs: Guidancefor State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, September 2016
g¡ ere emins the-Arp eid Me
Unpaid Meøl Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016
eewfliøtee with and Etrfeteenwú ef tlte Bu'' ,4nøiean Prcyßien ùt tlrc Natienal telrcel Lutrclt Ptegrant SP 24 2A16¡

W
Díscretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, January 2014
l,l/EB SITES
Calfornia Departrnent of Educøtion, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
Caliþrniø School Nutrition Association: http: //wvvw.calsna.org
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://vvww.fns.usdø.gov/cnd

(sn7 3tr8) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3551(a)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUNI)

Note: Districts that hal¡e ene gr Éere high pe
1+59€M provides breakfast and/or lunch free ofcharge to all students at'theseheel (i.e., "universal meal service") at one or
more schools pursuant to 42 USC 1759a or Education Code 49550.5 should revise the following administrative regulation
accordingly. Also see BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals.

Payments for Meals

Note: State and federal law (Education Code 49550;42 USC 1758,1773) require that all students eligible for free and reduced-price
meals receive a reimbursable meal during each school day, which must be the same meal choice offered to noneligible students; see

BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. California Department of Education (CDE) Nutrition Services Division Management
Bulletin SNP-091503-2018 clarifies that districts therefore cannot serve an alternate meal (i.e., a meal that is different than the
day's advertised meal) to a student eligible for reduced-price meals who does not have the ability to pay or who fails to provide a
meal ticket or other medium of exchange on a given day.

In addition to providing meals at no cost to students who are eligible, the district may offer meals at no cost to students who qualify
for reduced-price benefits. Districts that choose to eliminate reduced-price meal charges may still claim the meals at the reduced-
price rate, but the cost difference between the reduced-price meal and the no-çost meal must be covered by the district's cafeteria
fund. ormore information, see the U.S. Department
of Agriculture's (USDA) Memorandum SP 17-2014.

2r5



The following section includes recommendations of the CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin and the USDA's
"ts About School Mçals" on the USDA's web site and may be revised to reflect district practice.

With the exception of students who are eligible to receive meals at no cost, students may pay on a per-meal basis

or may submit payments in advance. The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a systern for accurately
recording payments received and tracking meals provided to each student.

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf. 3552 - Summer Mectl Progrøm)
(cf 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf 3555 - Nutrition Frogram Cornpliance)

Note: CDE's program monitoring process (the Administrative Review) requires districts to continually notifu parents/guardians of
rli.t'-i^+ ^^l;-;-. -^-^.,1;-- *-.f -..*-ntc innl"¡{i-- ^1"^**^ a^^^rrñtô qøÃ olt^,æq¡^ 

-.ol.a 
if ô*^li^âLl- Tì;.+;^é- {L^"1¡ ^t ^t¡iùUiUL ijuiií.riç5 fçgai¡(jüÌE üiiräi Pö)iiiivä¿ìj, üiuii¡üiüB Uiiil¡Bû AwúUi¡iri,t a¡tiii a¿iüVi¡i¿llü iiiäa1i¡ ii A,iJPiTtav\ç. uIÖ.¡¡ú.ù ùIlvsrur 4t 4

minimum, infoän parenis/guardians ai ihe beginning of 
"lie 

school year and on aa ongoing basis of disir.ici practices for sti¡denis who
have lost or forgotten their meal payment. In addition, districts should set up a system for notifying parents/guardians when a student's
*^^l ^^.*^-+ ô^^^r,á+ L^. ^ l^,,, ^- -^^^ri',^ t ^l--^-¡¡¡vo¡ pøJ u¡v¡It 4wwvg¡¡! r¡4ù 4 ¡v rv v¡ ¡lvÉsLr Y w voro^^vw.

AR 35sl(b)

FOOÐ SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

According to USDA's Memorandum SP-23-2017, the district's policy on delinquent meai payments must be communicated in writing
to all houssholds at the start of each school year and to households transferring to the school during the school year. CDE's Nutrition
Ser''¡ices Division lv{anagement Bulletin SNP-03-20i7 staies 

"haï, 
aia minimum, dis'rricts shoi¡ld use'rhe methods speciÍied below-io

communicate the district's meal

At the beginning of the school year, and whenever a student effiolls during the school year, parents/guardians
shall be notified of the district's meal payment policies and be encouraged to prepay for meals whenever possible.
The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's meal payment policies through multiple methods,
including, but not limited to:

Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to parents/guardians at the start
ofthe school year

Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to parents/guardians annually

Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the application process for free
and reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of applications at the start of the school year

Posting the policy on the district's web site

Establishing a system to notifii parents/guardians when a student's meal payment account has a low or
negative balance

(cf. I I 13 - Dístrict and School LVeb Sites)
(cf 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. According to the USDA's "FAQs About School
Meals," any district that participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program and has one or more schools which use

a system of meal tickets (or tokens, cards, or other similar medium of exchange) may limit the number of lost or stolen tickets it will
replace for students each school year, as long as the limit is set at three or more. However, such a limit may only be established if

1

2

J

4

5

2L6



the school (l) advises students and parents/guardians of the district's rules regarding replacement tickets at the beginning of the
school year and/or when applications for free and reduced-price meals are distributed or approved; (2) maintains a list of students
who have reported lost and stolen tickets and the number ofoccurrences for each student; (Ð (3) issues at least one advance
warning to tlie stuãènt-or-ffiFr the student's parent/guardian prior to refusing to issue a replacement ticket; and (3) (4) does not
deny meals to prekindergarten or younger primary students or students with disabilities who may be unable to take full responsibility
for their meal tickets. Although these requirements apply only to students who qualify for free or reduced-price meals, the USDA
recommends that districts apply the same limits for students who pay full price for their meals in order to ensure that needy students
are not identified because ofa ticket

AR 35s1(c)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

In any school that uses a system of meal tickets or other similar medium of exchange rather than an electronic
point-of-sale system, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a process for providing replacement tickets to
any student who reports hislher a tickets as lost or stolen. However, whenever any student reports an excessive
number of lost or stolen tickets, the Superintendent or designee shall notiff the parent/guardian and may provide
an alternative method of tracking meal usage for that student.

In order to avoid potential misuse of a student's food service account by someone other than the student in whose
name the account has been established, the Superintendent or designee shall verify a student's identity when
setting up the account and when charging any meal to the account. The Superintendent or designee shall
investigateanyclaimthatabil1doesnotbelongtoastudentorisinaccurate,

and shall open a new account as appropriate qritå+sei¡¡+eeeunt
HJffikfforastudentwhoseaccountappearstohavebeenmisused.

kf. 13a0 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Note: Pursuant to CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017, districts must ensure that students who
are approved for reduced-price meals receive all meals that are paid for. Any excess payments must be either carried over or refundcd
to the parents/guardians. The following paragraph extends this provision to also apply to students paying for full-price meals.

Any payments made to a student's food service account shall, if not used within the school year, be carried over
into the next school year or be refunded to the student's parents/guardians.

Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges

Note: The following section reflects requirements applicable to districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Brealdast
Program and may also be used by districts that do not participate in the program. Pursuant to USDA Memorandum SP 46-2016,
districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program are mandated to have a written and clearly
communicated meal charge policy which includes, but is not limited to, policy on the collection of delinquent meal charge debt.
Such policy may be consistent for all students or vary by grade level. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.

ia#s
witl:"r l0 days ef a negaÉive balanee in tåeir ehild's seheel meal aeeerxrt, Prier te sendisg the netifieatien te Éhe parerVguaf,dian;
tlre distriet mtrst exhanst all epÉiens and rnetheds te eertify tlre student fer free er redueed priee meals' The distriet is required te

AR 35s1(d)

2r7



FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

At its discretion, the district may choose to also noti$r parents/guardians before the student's meal account reaches a negative balance.
Thn fnll^r-i--¡ ¡rv 

^v.¡v 
Yv ¡u6 h- *^,{iff^,'l +n ¡¿flo¡r rlic*i¡+

^ No later than 10 days after a student's school meal account has reached a negative balance, the Superintendent or
designee shall so notifr/ the student's parent/guardian. Before sending this notification, the district shall exhaust
all options and methods to directly certify the student for free or reduced-price meals. If the district is not able to
directly certify the stu<íent, the notice to the pareniiguar<iian shaii inciude a paper copy oq or an eiectronic iink
to, atr applicalion fo¡ frqe or reducçd-price meals and the Superinterrdent or designe-e shall corrtact the
no¡o¡t/mrae¡7io- ln Ãñ^^rrroñâ orrL-ioo.i^- ^f +Lo an*li^o+ia- /EÁ"^â+;^h ñ^l^ /O<<? <\
l/ervrrr/õsqrsr4u rv w¡rwvs¡oów ùsu!¡¡¡ùJlvrr vr rlrv gPl/r¡w4lrvr¡. \Lugv4lrvl! vvuw atJJ l.J j

sebee+n*ealfees'

The district may attempt to colleci unpaid school meal fees from a parent/guardian, but shall not use a debt
collector. (Education Code 49557.5)

Note: The following optional paragraph reflects CDE guidance in its Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-
2417.

The Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreanent with a student's parent/guardian for payment of the
student's unpaid meal charge balance over a period of time" As necessary, the repayment plan may allow the
uffecovered or delinquent debt to carry over into the next fiscal year.

The district shall not direct any action toward a student to coilect unpaid school meal fees. (Education Code
495s7.s)

Note CDE'S Nutrition SeñiceS DiiisìolMdagement Bullelin SNP:03:2017 iequiies th'at thedistriCt's unpaid meal Þolicy conforni
with the cost principles sct forth in 2 CFR 200.426, as provided below.

The district's efforts to collect debt shall be consistent with district policies and procedures, California Department
of Education (CDE) guidance, and 2 CFR 200.426. The district shall not spend more than the actual debt owed
in efforts to recover unpaid meai charges.

Note: Pursuant to CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletins€ÞP46-2e$-an+SNP-03-2017, delinquent debt must
be reclassified as bad debt and written off as an operating loss if it is not paid by the end of the fiscal year in which the debt was
incurred, unless the district enters into a repayment plan with the parent/guardian prior to the end of the fiscal year or the debt occurs
fewer than 90 days prior to the end of the fiscal year. Federal funds a¡e not available to reimburse the district for bad debt. Districts
are required to maintain related records in accordance with 7 CFR 210.9 and210.15.

AR 3551(e)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the efforts made to collect unpaid meal charges and, if
applicable, financial documentation showing when the unpaid meal balance has become an operating loss.

2L8



Reimbursement Claims

Note: To streamline administration of state and federal meal programs, CDE has developed an online Child Nutrition Information
and Payment System which must be used to submit reimbursement claims and to submit and track the status of applications and
USDA food requests.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each day by school site and
by category of free, reduced-price, and full-price meals. The Superintendent or designee shall submit
reimbursement claims for school meals to CDE using the online Child Nutrition Information and Payment System.

Donation of Leftover Food

Nete: The felleril¡ing s
by SB 557 (Çh, 285; Statutes ef 2017); antåerizes diseiets te previde "sharing tables" where feed serviee staf4 students; and faer¡ll

€h€ritabte-€r€âtsizetier"

To minimize waste and reduce food insecurity, the district may provide sharing tables where students and staff
may return appropriate unused cafeteria food items to be made available to students during the course of a regular
school meal time. If food on the sharing tables is not taken by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food
to a food bank or any other nonprofit charitable organization. (Health and Safety Code 114079)

(cf, 3510 - Green School Operøtíons)

Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the packagirlg still intact
and in good condition, whole uncut produce, unopened bags of sliced fruit, unopened containers of milk that are
immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 41 degrees Fahrenheit or below, and perishable prepackaged
food if it is placed in a proper temperature-controlled environment. The preparation, safety, and donation of food
shall be consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980. (Health and Safety Code 114079)

Cafeteria Fund

Note: Education Code 3€€9+ 38093 authorizes the Governing Board to establish one or more cafeteria revolving accounts to be
treated as revolving cash accounts ofthe cafeteria fund.

AR 3ss1(Ð

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in the cafeteria fund as

provided by law. The income and expenditures of any cafeteria revolving account established by the Governing
Board shall be recorded as income and expenditures of the cafeteria fund. (Education Code 38090, 3809138093)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf, 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

Note: Education Code 3810L, as amended by AB 3043 (Ch. 593, Statutes of 20L8), permits a district, with approval from
CDE' to utilize cafeterÍa funds to pay for the purchase of a mobile food facility. However, if the district uses federal
reimbursements from any of the federal chÍld nutrition programs for such purchaseo the mobile food facility shall only be

2L9



programs. Mobile food facilities used for any purposes other than to
programs shall not be with cafeteria funds.

The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Board as necessary for the operation
of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-38103, 2 CFR Part200 Appendix VII, and the
California S chool Accountin g lvianual.

Note: The following optional paragraph Ís for use by districts that choose to provide universal brealdast (free of charge to
all students) at one or more schools. Pursuant to Education Code 49550.5, as added by AB 3043, districts may use cafeteria
funds to supplement the cost of providing universal breakfast provided they submlt the required certification to CDE. The
requiremeni to submít certific¿tion does not apply to any dÍstrict that provides unÍversal breakfast pursuant to a federally
authorized provision (e.g., Provísiom 1,2, or 3 or the Community Etigibility Provision of the National School Lunch Act).

W'ith eIlE approval, the rüstrict may use câfeteriâ funds to srrppiement the Frovisiox of r¡niveßal
breakfast. On or before July 1 of each year, the district shall submit to CDE a Board-sigued application
certifying that breakfast will be provided to all students at no charge and that any cost above the amount
--^-,91^l:- f^r^--r -^:-l--,-^^-^-¿--,:lt l-^ ^^-,^-^J L,,+L^ l:-á-:^¿--,:*L -^-f^J^-^l f,.-J^ ltriÃ,.^^+i^- ñ^,ln
lrr rrYrl'¡çt¡ rlt lçtl'ltl ¡ll I çItlllJttl Ðçltlvtlf vvt.l'l lrlt çl.rvEI ç1¡ lr-v l,tIE tllÐl,l tLl. YYll,lt lllrtllçt¡ltl .lr ltl[trÐ. (Þ[¡uL4aruu vvse

49ss0.s)

Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by a written explanation
of the expenditure's purpose and basis. (Education Code 38101)

(cf, 3 I I 0 - Trønsfer of Funds)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII and USDA
guidance SP 60-2016, Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Aeencies and School Food Authorities, provide information regarding
allowable indirect costs that may be charged to ihe nonpiofit school food service account. Indiieci ûosts are those ..hai are incurred
for the benefit of multiple programs or objectives and typically support administrative overhead functions (e.g., accounting, payroll,
-"-^tr ^.:-- ,.+:1:+:^- :--:+^;^t -^*,:^^-\ E-^L --^*^* ^- ^L:^^r;"- +t -+ L---€+- &^* +L^ ;^Å1-^^r ^^-r Loo-o a*e na¡fianylgv¡rso¡¡^6, sur¡r!¡wù, Juulvr¡s¡ ùwr v rwwù/. Lswu y

of the cost. Costs may be charged to the nonprofit food service account only if properly documented.

AR 3ss1(g)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior year indirect cost
rate as approved by CDE or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for thg second prior fiscal year,

whichever is less. (Education Code 38101)

Note: Pursuant to 7 CFR 2l€# 210.14 andÐ8J4220.7, net cash resources (i.e., all monies that have accrued to the nonprofit school
food service at any given time, less cash payable) should not exceed th¡ee months average expenditures. If there is a surplus, then
according to USDA guidance, Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Aeencies and School Food Authorities, the district must lower the
price of paid lunches, improve food quality, or make other improvements to school meal operations. CDE's Nutrition Services
Division Management Bulletin NSD-SNP-07-2013 provides that the The spending plan de'øeloped by the district'¿nder such
circumstances must be the CÐE.

Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed three months average expenditures. (2
€FR-220+4I(7 CrR 210.14, 220.7)

U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods

Note: Thc following optional section is for use by districts that participate in the National School Lunch Program and receive foods
from the USDA pursuant to 42 USC 1755 and 7 CFR 250.1-250.70. CDE is responsible for ordering and distributing USDA foods

22A



for use in California schools. Pursuant to 42 USC 1758, USDA must ensure that foods offered through this program rcflect the most
recent Guidelines for Americans.

The district shall provide facilities for the storage and control of foods received through the U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA) that protect against theft, spoilage, damageo or other loss. Such storage
facilities shall maintain donated foods in sanitary conditionso at the proper temperature and humidity, and
with adequate air circulation. The district shall comply with all federal, state, or local requirements related
to food safety and health and procedures for responding to a food recall, as applicable, and shall obtain all
required health inspections. (7 CFR 250.14)

The $upffintendent er desigÌe

1, ¡\re sanitary and free &em redent; bird; inseet; ané ether animalinfestatien

a^€--,^-l â-^J- ^^^:--+ +L^+ -^^:l^^^ ^-¡ ^+1-^* l^--
vsrvÕsanv rvv99 sÞ4urou lr¡vrl, ùÌ/vl¡sõvt qru vL¡rv¡ ¡vùù

'l\/f^:-+-;- ç^^,Ã- ¡4 çe¡aæ a1.a*¡*a ]aaaa¡aêrr+a¡rvvvD s! yrvllvr sùvr4óv uv^uyvrslsrvo

i€n

AR 3ss1(h)

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance with 7 CFR 250.59 and
CDE procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their expiration dates.

USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable. USDA foods also maybe used in other
nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school breakfasts or other meals, aIa carle foods
sold to students, meals served to adults directly involved in the operation and adminiskation of the food service
and to other school staff, and training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction
for students, provided that anyrevenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service account.
(7 CFR 2s059)

Contracts with Outside Services

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that contract for food service management services pursuant to Education
Code 49554,42 USC 1758, or 7 CFR 210.16 or consulting services pursuant to Education Code 45103.5, and should be modified to
reflect the type(s) of contractsjn the district maintains; see the accompanying Board policy.

The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed one year. Any
renewal of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such services shall be considered on a year-
to-year basis. (Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 210.16)

Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and comply with the
conditions in Education Code 49554 andT CFR 210.16 as applicable. The district shall retain control of the
quality, extent, and general nature of its food services, including prices to be charged to students for meals, and

22r



shall monitor the food service operation through periodic on-site visits. The district shall not enter into a conkact
with a foocl service company to provide a la carte foo<l services only, unless the company agrees to offer free,
reduced-price, and full-price reimbursable meals to all eligible students. (Education Code 49554;42 USC 1758;
7 CFR 2t0.r6)

Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service classified staff by the
manâgement consuitant, nor shali it result in the eiimination of, any fooci service classified staff or position or
have any adverse effect on the \¡/ages, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment of classified food
service staff or positions. All persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable ernployment
conditions related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5. (Education Code 45103.5)

(cf. 3312 - Contrøcts)
(cÍ 3515,6 - Criøipa.l Bscbgrsund ehecbsfbr ÇoutrseÍors)
(,cf 3600 - Consultants)

.a R 1551 li\risrvv^t¡,

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND (continued)

(cf, 4 1 12.a/a2 I 2.4/43 12.4 - Health Examinations)
(cf. 4212 - Appointments and Conditíons of Employment)

222



(sn7 3tr8) Ttre

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Certificated Personnel AR 4117.7(a)
43T7.7

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS

Note:EducationCode44030.5and44242'5and5CCR8030}+s
requiretheSuperintendenttomakeareporttotheCommissiononTeacherCredentialing(CTC)

when the employment status of a certificated employee has been çþanged as a result of alleged misconduct or while an allegation of
misconduct is pending. Upon notification by the district o¡ othcr specified agencies, tå€ CTC may conduct a review and take an
adverse action against the certificated employee, including, but not limited to, suspension or revocation of the credential.

Pursuant to 5 CCR 80303, the report must be made regardless of any proposed or actual agreement, settlement, or stþulation between
the district and the employee not to make such a report. The report must also be made if the allegations are withdrawn in
consideration of the employee's resignation, retirement, or other failurs to contest the truth of the allegations.

Pursuant to Education Code 44030.5 and 5 CCR 80303, as amended, the Superintendent's failure to make the report of the change
in employment status or to noti$r the affected employee of the contents of 5 CCR 80303 would be considered unprofessional conduct
and, if it is determined that the Superintendent refused or willfully neglected to make the report, h€Ah€ the Superintendent may be
found guiþ of a misdemeanor and fined.

The Superintendent shall report to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) any change in the
employment status of a certificated omployee who, while working in a position requiring a credential and as a
result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation ofmisconduct is pending: (Education Code 44030.5,
44242.5;5 CCR 80303)

1. Is dismissed or nonreelected

(cf. 4l l6 - Probationary/Permanent Status)

þf, a117.6 - Dectsíon Not to Rehire)
(cf, 4I 18 - Dismßsal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

2. Resigns

(cf 4 I 1 7.2/42 1 7.2/43 1 7.2 - Resignøtion)

J Is suspended or placed on unpaid administrative leave for more than 10 days as a final adverse
employment action

4. Retires

223



5. is otherwise terminated by a decision not ro empioy or reempioy

(cf. 4 I I 9. 2 I /4 2 I 9. 2 I /4 3 I 9. 2 I - Professional Standørds)

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS (continued)

þJ 5 I a I .a - ÇhiU 4bu;e Prevetoüqn qn-d &e-porting)

AR 4117.7(b)
Á,, a F, .t
+Jtt.l

This report is not required when the change in employment status is due solely to unsatisfactory perfofinance
pursuant to Education Code 44932 or a reduction in force pursuant to Education Code 44955-44958. (Education
Code 44030.5,44242.5; 5 CCR 80303)

(cf, 4 I I 5 - Evaluøtton/Supervísion)
(cf, 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction)

Note: Education Code 44030.5 requires the Superintendent to submit the report to the CTC within 30 days of the change in
employn.rentstatus.5CCR80303requires*ecTctoacknowledgereceiptofthereport
within 30 days of reeeipt.

S l-l*P 1O?ô? ¡¡-^*.aalx;l ¿lac¡rilrpa fhê êôñfãñf< thâ1 ffis1hê i¡ntrrãaã in fha ra¡n¡f 'l.ha rcñni.f <hn¡¡lá-ha ma¡{e rrsino a nnfifinelinn
vv¿vJ,9v*^gv¡¡Þvs'

form available on the CTC's web site and attaching relevant documents, evidence, and materials related to the district's investigation
of the misconduct.

When required, the report of a change in ønployment status shall he suhmitterl not later than 30 days after the
employrnent action. The report sha1l be made using a form provided by +he CTC and shall include all known
information about each alleged act of misconduct by the employee. The report shall contain the name and current
address of the certificated employee, name of the district, last school or district assignment, an explanation of the
allegation of misconduct or pending allegation of misconduct, current contaçt information for all persons who
may have information relating to the alieged misconduct, and any and ali documentation related to the case.

(Education Code 44030.5; 5 CCR 30303)

Upon a change in employment status as a result of alleged misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is
pending, the Superintendent shall, in writing, inform the employee of the contents of 5 CCR 80303. (5 CCR
80303)

(cf. 4 I I 2. 9 /4 2 I 2. I /4 3 I 2. 9 - Empl oy ee Norific ations)

Additional Reports of Employee Misconduct

Note: Notification forms for the in items #1-2 below are available on the CTC's web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall submit a report to the CTC, using a form provided by the CTC and attaching
all relevant documents, whenever:

224



I

AR 4117.7(c)
43t7.7

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS (continued)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44940, the district must notif,r +he CTC when an employee has been charged in court with a

"mandatory leave of absence offense," defined as a sex or drug offense specified in Education Code 44940 or a violation or
attempted violation of Penal Code 187 (murder). Also see BPIAR 4118 - DismissaVSuspensionlDisciplinary Action. Upon
receivitg notification from the district regarding any such offense, the CTC will automatically suspend the employee's credential.
Education Code 44423.5 also requires ths CTC to suspend an individual's credential upon receiving notice that another state has
taken final action to revoke the individual's credential.

An employee, by complaint, information, or indictrnent filed in court, is charged with a "mandatory leave
of absence offense," defined as a sex or drug offense specified in Education Code 44940 or violation or
attempted violation of Penal Code 187 (murder). (Education Code 44242.5,44940, 44940.5)

Not laterthan 10 days afterreceipt of such a complaint, information, or indictmentregarding an employee,
the Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the received documents to the CTC. In addition,
h€Æhe the Superintendent or designee shall report to the CTC any action taken in connection 

"vithextending the employee's mandatory leave beyond the initial period. (Education Code 44940,44940.5)

Note: According to the CTC's notif,rcation form, submission of this notification to the CTC does not relieve the district of the
obligation to also submit an employment status report of the same misconduct when the district takes disciplinary action resulting in
a change in employment status.

If the offense results in a change in employnr.ent status, the Superintendent shall submit an employment
status report in addition to the report of the mandatory leave of absence offense.

An employee refuses, without good cause, to fulfiII a valid employment contract, or departs from district
service without the consent of the Superintendent or Governing Board. (Education Code 44242.5,44420)

Note: EducationCode44242.5givestbeCTCauthoritytoreviewanyoftheviolationsdescribedinitems#1-3belowuponreceiving
notice from a district. Since the law does not require districts to report these violations to the CTC, the district should revise the
following list to identify the types of violations that it will report and then ensure consistent implementation.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee also shall notiffth€ CTC of any of the following:

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44242.5, tåe CTC will not consider action on the basis of alleged sexual misconduct (item #1
below) unless there is evidence in the form of a written or oral declaration under penalty of perjury that confirms the personal

ofthe declarant the acts alleged to constitute misconduct.

AR 4117.7(d)
4317.7

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS (continued)

A complaint filed with the district regarding a certificated employee's aileged sexual misconduct
(Education Code 44242.5)

2

I

225



2

(cl. 4119.24/4219.24/4319.24 - Maintøining Appropríøte Adult-Student Interøctíons)

The notice to the CTC shall contain all of the following information: (5 CCR 80304)

a. Name of the employee alleged to have engaged in the sexual misconduct

L \r^*^ ^-^ ^^Ã ^ÅÃ-^^^ ^f ^^^L -,:^+:* ^f +L^ ^11^^^J ^^-.,.^1 -:^^^-J,,^+L], l\(l'rltgr l[Ë,çr llrrU 4L¡Ltlç¡ù \rl s4rslt vltJlllll ut Lll.ç crrlçËç(¡ ùçÀtlall llll.ùç(lll|tlU9L

c. A summary of all information known to thc district regarding the alleged sexual misconduct

d. A summary of the action, if any, taken at the district level in response to the complaint of sexual
misconduct

/nf I?l) I - a^^^l^iu¡c l1annøvnìn¡ l-licrvì¡r Fønl^a,DDal

(cf. 4 I I 9. I 1 /a 2 I 9. I I /4 3 I 9. I I - Sexual Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Senul Harøssment)

An employee's knowing and willful use of school records of student data in connection with, or in implicit
or explicit attempts to recruit a student to be a customer for, any business owned by the certificated
employee or in which the certificated employee is an empioyee (Education Code 44242.5,44421.1)

(cf, 5125 - Student Records)

An empicyse's knowing ând willfi;l reporting of false fiscal expenditure data reiati've ta the conduct af
any educational program (Education Code 44242.5, 44421.5)

An employee's subversion or attempt to subvert any licensing examination or the administration of an
examination (Education Code 44242.5, 44439)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

AR 4117.7(e)
4317.7

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44009 Conviction of specified crimes
440 I 0 Sex offense, definitions
4 4 0 1 I C ontro ll ed substance offens e, definitions
44030.5 Employment status reports
44225 Powers ønd duties of rke CTC
44 2 4 2. 5 Reports and review of alleged misconduct

A

226



44420-44440 Adverse actions by CTC against credential holder
44932 Causes for dßmissal
44940 Sex offenses and narcotic offenses; compulsory leave ofabsence
44940.5 Compulsory leave of absence
449 5 5 -449 58 Reduction in force
PENAL CODE
187 Murder
CODE OF REGUI-ATIONS. TITLE 5
80303 Reports of change in employment status, alleged misconduct
80304 Notice of sexual misconduct

Management Resources:
C O MMIS S IO N O N TEAC HE R C RE D E NTALING P U B LIC ATIO NS
Calífornia's Laws and Rules Pertaining to the Disciolíne qf Professional Certi-frcated Personnel.20+2019
WEB SITES
CSBA: http : //www.csba.org
C ommis s io n on Te ac her Cr e d entialing : hxp : //vwvw. ctc. c a. gov

(11/08 4t14) 7tle

Policy Reference UPDATE Seryice
Copyright 2019by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Classifìed Personnel BP 4218(a)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Note: The following policy is for use by districts that have not incorporated the merit system for classífied employees pursuant
to Education Code 45240-45320. For procedures applicable to districts that have incorporated the merit system, see BP/AR
4218.1 - DismissaVSuspension/Disciplinary Action (MerÍt System).

The following polÍcy is subject to collective bargaining and may be deleted or revised by any district whose collective
bargaining agreement covers classilied employee dismissal, suspension, and other disciplinary action.

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily and to exhibit professional
and appropriate conduct. A classified employee may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or

227



unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law or any applicable collective bargaining agreemento
Board poHcy, and administrative regulation

(cf, 1312.1 - Compløints Concerníng Dís*íct Employees)
(cf 4000 - Concepts ønd Roles)
(cf, 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Crhnìnøl Record Check)
(cÍ, 4 1 1 9. 1 1/4 2 I 9. I 1/43 I 9. I I - Sexuøl H ørassment)
(cf, 4 1 1 9. 2 1 /4 2 I 9. 2 I /4 3 I 9. 2 I - Profe ssíonøl Stan dørd s)
(cÍ, 4141/4241 - Collectíve Børgaíníng Agreement)
(cÍ, 4200 - Classifted Personnel)

Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of
the employee's conduct or performance. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that discþlinary
actions are t¿ken in a consistent, nondiscriminatory ma¡urer and are appropriately documented.

(cl, 4030 - Nondìscrtmínøtíon ìn Employment)
(cl, 4112.6/4212.6/13I2,6 - Personnel Fíles)
(cf. 4119.1/,Q19.1143tr9.1 - Ci'víl wed LegøI Rìght^t)

Disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited ton verbal and written warnings, involuntary
reassignment, demotion, suspension without pay, reduction of pay step in class, compulsory leaveo and
dismissal.

@probationarycIassifìedemployeemaybedismissedbytheSuperintendentor
designee at any time prior to the expiration of the probationary period.

(cJ:, 4216 - Probationøry/Permønent Støtus)

BP 4218ú)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

Note: Education Code 45 I 13 mandates districts not incorporating the merit system to prescribe, by written de or regulatiotL causes

and procedures for disciplinary action against permanent classi{ied employees. AIso see the accompanlng administrative

Permanentc1assifiedemp1oyeesshal1besubjecttopæsennetrdisciplinaryaction@
only for cause as specified in the accompanying

administrative regulation. Tlæ Beard's detsminatien ef the sr*ffieieney ef the ear*se fer diseiplinry aetien shall
be-eeneh¡si+e @ducation Code 45113)

Procedures for Discíplinary Proceedings

Note: The following section should be revised to reflect district practÍce. Pursuant to Education Code 45113 tnd 45116, t
permanent classified employee must be given notice of any recommendation for disciplinary action agaÍnst the employee,
including a time period during which the employee may request a hearing on the charges. See the section "Initiation and
Notification of Charges" in the accompanying administrative regulation.

Pursuant to Education Code 45113, the Governing Board may delegate its authority to determine whether sufficient cause
exists for disciplinary action against classÍfied employees, excluding peace oflicers as defined in Penal Code 830.320 to an
impartial third-party hearing officer. HearÍngs conducted by the Board or a hearing officer are not subject to the procedures

228



used by the OffÏce of Administrative Hearings pursuant to Goyernment Code 11500-11529. The followÍng section is for use
by boards who conduct their own hearing and should be revised by boards that use a hearing officer.

As amended by AB 2234 (Ch.996, Statutes of 2018), Education Code 45113 requires the Board to delegate its authority to
an administratÍve law judge in cases involving allegations of egregious misconduct with a minor. Egregious misconduct is
defined as immoral conduct leading to an allegation of a sex offense pursuant to Education Code 44010, a controlled
substance offense pursuânt to Education Code 44011, or child abuse or neglect pursuant to Penal Code 11165.2-1.1165.6. In
conducting hearings on such matters, the administrative law judge is required to comply with Education Code 44990-44994,
as added AB to the of minor wítnesses.

If a permanent classifÌed employee receÍves a notice from the Superintendent or designee of a
recommended suspensiono demotion, involuntary reassignment, or dismissal, the employee may request a
Board hearing on the matter.

Iftheemp1oyeefai1sto@requestahearingwithinthetimespecifiedinthenotice,h*ese
@theempIoyeeisdeemedtohavewaivedhMeftherigbttoappealdoso,andtheBoard
may order the recommended disciplÍnary action into effect immediately.

Ifatimelyrequestissubmitted,ahearingshallbeconductedbytheBoard'

exceptthat,ifthematterinvoIvesanalIegationofegregious
misconduct as defined in

BP a218(c)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

Education Code 44932 and involves a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge
to determine whether sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee. @ducation Code
451,13,45312)

(cl, 3515.3 - Dístríct Políce/Securíty Depørtnent)

Iftany easein $'hieh &e B€

the Beard shall aflr,rr; sreéiû'er reveke the reeer"aeûded perseffiel aetien,

The hearing shall be held at the earliest convenient date, taking into consideration the established schedule of the
Board €{+earinåeffi€ffi and the availability of legal counsel and witnesses. The partlesemployee shall be notified
of the time and place of the hearing.

The hearing shall be held in closed session, unless the employee requests that the matter be heard in an
open session meeting. (Government Code 54957)

(cÍ, 9321 - Closed Sessíon)

Theemployeeshal1beentitledtoappearpersona11y'produceevidence,and

be represented by legal counsel.

229



The Board may use the services of its legal counsel er-a*ea#ng-effeer in ruling upon procedural questions,
objectionstoevidence,andissuesoflaw.TheBoard@mayreviewandconsidertherecords
of any prior personnel action proceedings against the anployee in which a persennel diseiplinary action was
ultimately sustained and any records that-¡ree contained in the employee's personnel files and introduced into
evidenceatthehearing.Nei+her+heTheBoard@shal1notbeboundbyru1esofevidenceused
in Califomia courts. Informality in any such hearing shall not invalidate any order or decision made er€ppr€v€d
by the+ær,ng-ê#i€€r-or the Board.

Atanytimebetbre@amatterisf,*alþsubmittedtotheBoard@for
decision,@theSuperintendentordesigneemay'withtheconsentoftheBoarderherrdngeffeer,
serve on the employee and file with the Board an amendecl or supplemental recommendation of persennel
disciplinary action. If the amended or supplemental recommendation presents-includes new causes or
-11^-^1:-,-- L1 1 -- -l--ltt-- -tr-,-l-l - -t-t- -,----,L-,-lL-- -,--7,r-f,--,-- a-1-,^-- 

^----¿nrvBauulr5. rrrç çIlrfrruyEË slr¿lrr uç ¡ltr.ulueu a Iç¡t¡iutrilorE upput tuutty tu prqral9 fttti#trlf a L¡trrglrsg. f\IIy lrtrw L;itussü

or ailegations shall be deemed controverted and any objections to the amended or supplemental causes or
aiiegation may be made orally at the hearing and shall be noted on the record.

RP 421E(d)

DISMISSALiSUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

@Followingthehearingbythe-eeard,theBoardshallaffirm,modify'or#rejectthe
+eceæ**endeé p€rseaåel discipiånary action reeomÊãsnded by the Superintendent or designee. The decision
of the Board shall be in writing and shall contain findings of fact and the personnetdisciptinary action approved,
if any. The decision of the Board shall be final.

eepy ef the prepeseédeeisien shall be+eeeived and filed by the Beard

prepes€d¡€eisisft'

(3) Rqieet a prepesed reénctien i* persennel aetierb appreve tlre persennel aetien seuêht by
isi€ft

( l) Rqieet the prepesed deeisien in its entirety,

d, [f the Beard rqieets the prepese*deeisien in its entiretFeaeh party shall be netified ef seelr a€tien

ine

e. trr+arriring at a deeisien er a prepesed deeisien en the prepriety ef the prepesed persennel.aetien;
in€s

+aË,

230



ien

BP a218(e)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCPLINARY ACTION (continued)

The deeisien ef the Beard shall be eertified te the Superintendent er designee rvhe reeemrnendeêthepersennel
isie* Within 10 working days of the Boardrs final decisiono

a A copy of the decision shall be delivered to the app€llanfer-hisÆ€r employee and/or designated representative
personally or by registered mail.

fn cases involving an allegation of egregious misconduct, the ruling of the adminisl¡¿tive law judge shall
be bÍnding on the district and the employee. (Education Code 45113)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
35161 Delegation of powers q,nd duties
44009 Conviction of specified crimes
44010 Sexoffense
4401 I "Controlled substance offense" defined
44031 PersonnelJile
44940 Leave ofabsence; employee chargedwith mandatory or optional leave ofabsence offense
44940.5 Compulsory leave of absence; procedures; extension; compensation; bond or security;-rqerts
44990-44994 Testímony of mínor wìtnesses at dísmíssal or suspensíon heøríngs
4 5 I 0 I Definitions (including " disciplinary øctíon, " " ceuse ")
4 5 I 09 Fixing of duties
45 I I 3 Rules and regulations for classífied service ín districts not i,ncorporating the mertt system
45123 Employment afier conviction of sex or narcotics offense
45124 Dismíssal of sexuøI psychopøth
45202 Trønsfer of øccumuløted sick leave and other benefits following dismissal
45240-45320 Merít system, cløssffied employees
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1286.2 Grounds for vøcatíng decßíon of arbítrator
GOVERNMENT CODE
1 1 5 00-1 I 5 29 Admínîstrøtíve ødjudícøtíon
12900-12996 Føír Employntent ønd Housíng Act
54957 Brown Act open meeting løws; closed sessíon
HEALTHAND SAFETY CODE
11054 Schedule I; substances included
11055 Schedub fI, substønces íncluded
11056 Schedub lff, substønces íncladed
11357-11361 Møríjuanø
11363 Peyote
11364 Opíum
11370.1 Possession of controlled substønces with øfireørm

Legal Reference continued: (see next page)

BP 4218(Ð

23L



DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCPLINARY ACTION (continued)

í,egai R e.feren<:e : (continued)
PENAL CODE
187 Murder
667.5 Sexofþnders
830.32 Peace ofifícers employed by dístríct
1 192.7 Violent or seríous felony
11165.2-11165.6 Chíld øbuse or neglect, deft.nitíons
I/EHICLE CODE

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

1808.8 School bus drivers; dismíssaifor søfet.v-related cause
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1 2 1 0 I - 1 2 2 I 3 Americans with Dßebilities Act
coum[pEç,!í[oNS
Cølí,fornía School Emnlovees Assocíatíon v. Bonfta Anífred School Dhtrící. (2008) Ns, 8-?00141
California School Emolovees v. Livinsston (Jnion School District. 2007.) 149 CaI.App 4th 391
CSEAv. Foothill Communit.v Collese District. (1975) 52 Cal. App.3rd 150, i'55-156, 124 Cal. Rp*A3e(1915)

7119

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

232



Classified Personnel AR a218(a)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Utete: tn aeeeøane ismiss

At an'' time prier te th€ ex?i

ffiifg:
Invelrrtt&ry Suspen

@
Permane+rt-elassified ernpleyees shall be sr*Þieet te peserrrel 'retien (suspensien rvitheut pay; dernetien; reduetien
ef p*y step in elass; dismissal) enly fer ear*se, Tlre Beards determinatien ef the suff,eieney eÊthe eanse fer

ive

Causes for DisciplÍnary Action

Note: The following section should be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 45113 mandates districts not
incorporating the merit system to prescribe, by ru1e or regulation, causes for disciplinary action against permanent classified
employees. Pursuant to Education Code 45101, sSuch employees may be disciplined only for cause as so prescribed. I+æer*t

i€n

4=---4auses

trn addiÊie*te any disqualiffing er aetienable ear*ses etkrerwise prer4ded fer by statute er by peliey er

@ApermanentclassifTedemployeemaybesubjecttosuspension,demotion,
involuntary reassignment, or dismissal for one or more of the following causes:

Note:PursuanttoEducationCode45122.l,45I23,arñ45l24,districts@mustnoteffidoyofcontinue
to employ anyone who has been convicted ofa speci{ied sex offense, controlled substance offense, or violent or serious offense
as defineddeseribe&.in+Iem#*, except for employees who have been rehabilitated or had their conviction reversed or the
charges dismissed.

Also see AR
4112.5 I 42t2.5 I 43 12.5 - Criminal Record Check.

AR 4218(b)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

lç.1. knmoral conduct:, including, but not limited to, egregious misconduct that Ís the basis for a sex
offense as defined in Education Code 440100 a controlled substance offense as defined in Education
Code 44ALl, or child abuse and neglect as described in Penal Code 11165.2-11165.6

(cf, 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Crímínøl Record Check)

233



)

tr3

(cf, 4 1 1 9. 2 4/4 2 1 9. 2 4/4 3 I 9. 2 4 - Møìntainin g Approprí øte Adu lt-Snd e nt f ntu r actío n s)
/-î a l /t I .! - l-htr,, /|¡',rî Þe^tnrtìnn ¿nÃ P¿na*linoltúJ. r^a^.4

Conduct that constitutes a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c)

Unlawful discrimination, including harassment,
iÊÊ

i against any student or other emFloyee

(cf, 4 1 1 9. 1 1/42 I 9. I I /4 3 I 9. I I - Sexuøl Harøssment)
(cÍ, 5 1 4 5.3 - Nondíscrímìnøtíon/Ifarassment)
(cf. 5145,7 - Sental Hø.rassmenî)

"4.ViotationoforrefusaItoobeysfateorfederallaworregulation,distrieÇtsorrd@polic¡ or dÍstrict or school procedure:

e5. Fai$iûfi"g Falsification of any information suppiied to the seheel district. inciuding, but not iimited to,
information supplied on application forms, employment records, or any other school distriet r€cords:

b.6. Unsatisfactoryperformancelneempetenef

^ r-^fG^:^-^.,v. r¡rvrl¡vrvr¡vJ.

7. Unprofessionalconduct

*8. Dishonesty,

*9. Neglect of duty or absence without leave'

e.10. Insubordination'

g-----Oisgensstf

AR a218(c)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

e11.@Useofalcoholoracontrolledsubstancewhileondutyorinsuchclose
timeproximitytheretoastoaffecttheemployee'sperformanceef

(cf 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Wrorkplace)
(cf 4112.41/4212.41/4312.41 - Employee Drag Testínþ
(cl. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testíngfor School Bus Drívers)
(cÍ, 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Progrøm)

234



h, Pgsses¡ing erb
Miner

i, eeftYietien ef a felo

j

M
1, Ðiseeurteeus treatrnent o

rÆ
e=12. Destruction or mMisuse of district property,

(cf 4040 - Employee Ase of Technologt)

fr13.Failureto@fuliillanyongoingconditionofemploymentincludin8obutnot
limited to, maintenance of any license, certificate, or other similar requirement specified in the
employee's class specification or otherwise necessary for the employee to perform the duties of the
position

(cf. 4 1 I 2. 4/4 2 1 2. 4/4 3 I 2. 4 - H e ølth Exøm in øtío n s)
(cÍ, 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

AR 42r8(d)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

t, nerusat te tat<e an¿ suUse

effipl€Jffi€aå

Note: Pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC l2l0l-12213) and the state's Fair Employment and
Ifousing Act (Government Code 12900-12996), the district has a duty to reasonably accommodate qualified employees with
known disabilities, except when such accommodation would cause ân undue hardship to the district. This accommodation is
not for individuals who are not otherwise ualified for the

*14. A physical or mental di.sabilig.condition which precludes the employee from the proper performance of
ffir duties and responsibilities as determined by competent medical authority, except as otherwise
provided by a contract or by law

(cl, 4030 - Nondisuímínøtion ín Employment)
(cl, 4032 - Reasonøble Accommodatíon)

235



t, U-rlawfuLdise*imination; inelr¡ding harassnnent; en the basis ef raee; religiens ereed; eeler; n*tienal erigin;
i*+g

rr15. {Ha¡¡rful+Retaliation against anye+} person who,
in good faith, reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise brings to the attention of any appropriate authority
any informaiion reiative to an aciuai or suspected vioiation of state or federai iaw occurring on or díreciiy
relatedtothejob@

(cl, 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Cívíl and Legøl Ríghts)

16. Violation of Education Code 45303 or Government Code 1028 (advocacy of communism)

-,tn ^--- ^åL- f^:r-.-^ ^f ^^^r L^L^-,":^- ^:rL- r.,.-:-- ^- ^-.+^:J^ ^t Ã--+-. L^.-#3 misconductwhich is of suchY;¡,r. ¡Lrly uLrlçr ry
nature that it ceuses discredit or injury to the district orhisAer the employee's position eaaplqËe*å'

An ernployee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassignedo transf'erredo dismissed, or otherwise retaliated
¡-gsi!!st sclely fer acting te proteet a student cr for refusing to infrlnge on e st'¡dent?s protected conduct,
when that student is exercising free speech or press rights pursuant to Education Code 489A7 or 48950.

@ducation Code 48907, 48950)

(cÍ, 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expressíon)

AR a2l8(e)

DISMISSALiSUSPENSION/DISCPLINARY ACTION (continued)

No disciplinary action shall be taken for any cause which arose

before the employee became permanent, nor for any cause which arose more than two years before the date of
thc filing of the noticc of causc unlcss this causc rür&s concc¡Ìlcd or not dissloscd by thc crnployce when it could
be reasonably assumed that the employee would have disclosed the facts to the district. (Education Code 45113)

(cf 4216 - Probatíonøry/Permanent Staus)

*-Initiation and NotifÏcation of charges

Note:EducationCode45113mandates+he-BearddistrÍctstoadoptdisciplinary
procedureswhichcontainprovisionsforgivingclassifiedemp1oyeesawrittennoticeofspecificcharges,@
rights, the employee's right to a hearing on those charges, the time withÍn which the hearing may be requested, and a card or

to to

emf+q¡ee,

Irt elt eases invslvi iea The Superintendent or designee shall
file +¡rd#en any recommendation for a disciplinary action in writing with the Governing Board.
A copy of the recommendation shall be served upon the employee either personally or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, at the employee's last known address.

The reeemmendatien notice shall, in ordinary and concise language, iadì#€: inform the employee of the
specific charge(s) or cause(s) for the disciplinary action, the specific acts and omissions upon which the

236



action is based, and, if applicableo the district rule or regulation that the employèe has allegedly violated.
In additiono the notice shall include the employeers right to a hearing on those chargeso the time within
which the hearing may be requested which shall be not less than five days after service of the notice to the
employee, and a card or paper which the employee may sign and file to deny the charges and request a
hearing. (Education Code 45113, 45116)

(cf. 4 1 1 2.9 /4 2 1 2. 9/4 3 1 2. 9 - E mp loye e NotíJíc atío ns)

b, ¿\ staternent ef the eause er ear*ses fer tlre persermsl aetien; as set ferth abeve.

e' .& statement ef the ryeeifie aets er emissiens upen n'hieh the ear*ses are baseé, If a vielatien ef

AR 4218(Ð

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

in

e- r\ eard er papet the sie-dng and filing ef rvhieh shall eenstitete a dernard fer lrearing ard a denial

er'Waivæ

Pxeeet as previ¿e¿ Uere
i in€

Ë--easefteble ,risk €f h
in

eerúwretien withthe reeernrnerdatien ef persennel aetie* This sr*spensien eréer slrall-be in wdting and

a$eris$¡afi€e

Pxeeet in eases ef emerge

in
eeqirmetien rvitlr a reeernrnendatien invehing dismissal, i€a
wither*t pE' is being eensidered; the reasens fer the prepesed dismissal and prepesed irrrnediate

areiss*eå

237



Fxeeet fer l srlspensi
perse

e*r*sp€nsieft

@Request for lfearing

Note: i€r

"after serviee ef the netiee," The netiee rvas delivered via

AR 4?lRloì

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSIONiDISCPLINARY ACTION (continueci)

r¡¡s*¡ç+¿enie¿+¡rqeryi

As provided in the section "fnidation
and Notification of Charges" above, Education Code 45113 requires that the notice of disciplinary action include the time
within which a hearing may be requested, which cannot be less than fîve days after seryice of the notice to the employee. In
Californla School Emplevees AsseciaÉioa'¿. LåvËnsston Union School Ðisiricå, íhe appeais co¡¡rt ruled Éhai the dåsÉricÉ íaíled
to provide due process to an employee when it denied the employee the opportunity to request a hearing based on the
employee's failure to respond within five days after service of the notice. The distríct's policy had established the date of
"service of the notice" as the date of nailing, but the employee was a L0-month employee who was out of town when the
notice was delivered. The court held that the notice was not "reasonably calculated" to provide an opportunity to timely
request a hearing. Thus, it is recommended rirar disrricÍs use Íire date of rire empioyee's receipr of rire norice as rire date upon
which the

Within@ivingthetimespecifiedinthenoticeoftherecommendationofpersennel
tlisciplinary actiondesedbeéeåëb,€, the employee mayapp€+l request â heâring on the chârges by signing and
filing the card or paper included with the r€€€ffiendatien notice. (Education Code 45113)

Any other 
"vritten 

document signed and appropriately filed within the specified time limit by the ernployee shall
constituteaSufficientnoticeofappealtherequestforahearing'ivefing
theThe@requestshaIIbedeliveredtotheofficeoftheSuperintendentordesigneeduringnormal
workhoursofthatoffice.@IfmailedtotheofficeoftheSuperintendentordesigneeoit
but must be received or postmarked no later than the time limit stateéåerein specified by the district. In cases
where an order of suspension without pay has been issued in conjunction with a recommendation of dismissal,
anyrequestforahearingonthedismissalshallalsoconStitutea*appealefa
request to hear the suspension order, and the necessity of the suspension order shall be an issue in the app€al
hearing.

tf tne empteyee Aits tegl

iffin€éiateljr,

3-Employment Status Pending a Hearing +ppe+er-lVaiver

Aclassifiedemployeeagainstwhomafecommendationofpersenneldisciplinary
actionhasbeenissuedshallremainonactivedutystatusioû

238



p€ndingpendinganyhearingonthechargesounIessIftheSuperintendentor
designee determines

AR 4218(h)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

that @ his/her eentinuing the employee's
continuance in active duty sÊafi* would present an uffeasonable risk of harm to students, staff, or property. $,;hi{€

@TheSuperintendentordesigneemay,inwritingoordertheemp1oyeeimmediately
suspended from duty without pay@
@iftgandshallstatethereasonsthatthesuspensionisdeemednecessary.Thesuspensionorder
shall be served upon the employee either personally or by registered or certified mail, retum receþt requested,
immediately after issuance.

er supplenrental reeenrerdatien presents new eanses er allegafens; tlre ernplelee shall be efferded a
reasenabte eppertgûity te pry

ies

inê
ir he¡¡she ¿eman¿s it-rûhen tlre B
represæte¿ Uy eeunset-çU

ia

b, v\ll Frearirgs shall be heard by a hea*ing effieer (rvhs shall be an attemey lieensed in tlre State ef
€aliferniÐ exeept in these eases rvlre*e the Beard d€ttrr"ines te hear t*re appeel itself, In aay ease
ln Ehieh the Beard hears *ie

AR 4218(Ð

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

239



e, trf the appealis heard by a hearing effieer; he/she shall p*epare a prepesed deeisien in a ferm that
------L- ^J^-r^J L-.+L^ D^^-J ^^ +L^ Å^^;^:^-:- +L^ ^^^^ ^ ^^-" ^ç+L^ -*^-^.oJ.lo^ioi^- alnll .lreÙ¡vìr'J¡¡g¡r vv

(l) y' dept the prepesed deeisien in it* entirety,

(2) Redeee the perserrrel aetien set ferth in the prepesed deeisien anC ftdept the balanee ef the
pr€pos€d-d€€isi€ft'

etien-in-pers
isioâ'

d, trf the Beæd rqíeets-tlre prepescd deeisien in its €ntirety; ea i€*

fumlshd te eaeh party rYi&in

e, h arriving at a deeisien er a prepesed éeeisien en ihe prepriety ef tire prepesed persermei aetien;
ings

a8ai
rvere eentsined in th€ empie'-ee's frerseffiel files afrd intredueed into evidea€e at tlìe hearing,

ien

perseffiet a€tie& arrd isioft

AR 4218CI)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

^ 
eepy ef &e deeisiffì s

Fxeept fer a strsperlsie

this time limitatien shall net ap-l'' te eases in whieh a perserrrel aefien ef d:smissal is medified b'' the Bearé te
af$spensi€+

240



Nete: This se€tiêÊ appl

i€n

the Beard éeteqnines frem the evidenee it requires thatrthe persen has been relrabilitateé fer at least {ive
ise

rvse based; despite the dispesitien by tlre eeurts, If éismissal is reeenrnended and upheld; an empleyee
rvill net be -eenrplet'ed er eempensated fer the time he/she ¡vas susperded rrless etlrerwise reqtrireé by
la\Y, ¡ú empleyee shall b€ giv

f-Compulsory Leave of Absence

AR 4218(k)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION (continued)

Note: Edeeation eede 45301
ia

M
fge Ceard may re+dre €elnfirlsery

tate law requires
that classilied employees in merit system districts and certifïcated employees be immediately placed on compulsory leave of
absence following conviction for certain offenses specified in Education Code 44940, and gives districts discretion to place
such employees on leave for other specified offenses. Although existing state law does not explicitþ provide for application
to classified employees in nonmerit system districts, such districts have authority pursuant to Education Code 45L13 to
establish causes for suspension or dismissal. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.

æeq

Fmpte''ees eharged !vi&
be plaeed irrrnediately on eesrpdsery le*ve ef absenee urder the tefins aad eenditiens stated belerv'

@
24L



1

tf se¿is*sse¿; tne

n+";-{rrrin+. the <.r-'în-'rlrnn'.rrrqnen.rinn if he/rhe ir rrltilrr¡telgfnrrnrl .ïrilfa'nf the +etr lnndin+to theyqJ søurb Lr¡v vvr^rl/w ¡J rvuus

eriminal eharges; despite the dispesitien ef the ehargçs b}'tlre eer¡*,

Upon being informed by law enforcement that ¿ classified employee has been charged with a "mandatory
leave of absence offenser" the Superintendent or designee shall immedi¿tely place the employee on a leave
of absence. A mandatory leave of absence offense includes:

An¡¡ ¡a--- nffanco qs ¡lafino.{ in E¡¡l¡r.-qfi¡n í-¡Ãa AAffiîlruJ Jv^ vrrvuùv cù ulrl[ls

Vioiation or atcempted vioiation of Penai Code 1S7 (murder or attempted rnurder)

An¡r offense involvins fhe unlawfirl sale^ use- or exchanse to minors of controlled substances as listed
in Health and Saiety Code 11054, 11055, and 11056 

AR 421g0)

fìf S,ñf f S'S À I /S' f TSPE'NSI llN/TlISl' IPI .fN Å. p\/ Å' l-TlflÑI lnnnfi nrrari ì

The Superintendent cr designee may place on an irnrnediate compulsory trea.¡e of absence e classified
employee who is charged with an I'optional leave of absence offenserrr defined as a controlled substance
oifense speciäeti in Education Code 44ûii and Ileaitn and Safety Code ii357-ii36i, ii3é3, Í.i3ó4, and
11370.1 except as it relates to marijuana, mescalineo peyoteo or tetrahydrocannabinols.

An employee's compulsory leave for a mandatory or optional leave of absence offense may extend for not
more than 10 days after the entry of judgment in the criminal proceedings. Ilorvever, the compulsory leave
may be extended if the Board gives notice, within 1"0 days after the entry of judgment in the proceedings,
that the employee will be dismissed within 30 days from the date of service of the notice unless the employee
demands a hearing on the dismissal.

44949,5.

in

-t-

242



(3te0 6te4) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 20l9by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

243



244



MEMO TO Erín Johnson, Athletic Director
Cris Oseguera, Principal

FROM Mark Priano, Varsity Girls Basketbail Coach

DATE: September 5,2019

SUBJECT: Varsity Girls BasketballTourney Trip December 12th - 14h

The Varsity Girls Basketball team is schedule to participate in the Bella Vista High School tournament in
Fair Oaks, CA December L2,13 and 14. Three games to occur. I am submitting the details of the trip,
which includes a two-night stay ín the Roseville/Sacramento area. The bracket and times have not yet
been released but the trip will include a Friday morning (t3th) student study hall at the hotel like we did
two years ago in Visalia. The players will bring school work and study materials in preparing for their
finals the following week. Attendance at the study hall is mandatory and will be monitored. I anticipate
a minimum three-hour session.

a

a

Thursdav. December 12th - travel to Fair Oaks. Departure time will be confirmed closer to
tournament date. Depending on time, stop for lunch and play first game TBD.

o Team stays in hotel with parent/coach chaperones. As in our past tr¡ps, multiple
players assigned per room. Goal is at least 2-3 parent chaperones in addition to
coaches.

o The overall cost of the rooms will be divided amongst the players with no cost to the
school. Coaches and parents pay for own rooms.

o Team dinner that night (and other meals) will also be paid for by team members,
parents and coaches. We will stay at a hotel that includes breakfast.

o Travel using one school van and parent driver(s).

Fridav, December 13th

o Players mandatory study hall at hotel in the morning.
o Game tíme on Day 2 is dependent on game 1 result.

o Team activity during day prior to game,

Saturdav, December 14th

o Saturday game t¡me TBD.

o Depart for Hamilton after game.

a

A review of this tournament trip will be held wíth players and parents at season opening layer/parent
meet¡ng. Our expectations for players behavior always during the tríp and games, representing
Hamilton High School will be clearly spelled out. Our players have represented the schoolvery well in
the past and I see this to be the case again for this seasons' trip.

Please move to have approved as required at school board meeting. Thank you

245



246



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD MEETING

MINUTES

Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, August 28, 2OI9

5:30 p.m.

5:30 p.m.

6:00 p.m.

Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below
Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

3.0

5.0

OPENING BUSINESS:

Callto order and roll call

V Gabriel Leal, President
V Genaro Reyes

V Hubert "Wendall" Lower, Clerk V Rod Boone
V RayOdom

4.O

2.O IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The
board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per ítem.

ADJOURN TO CTOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.
t. Education Code Section 48918, Student Discipline. To consider disciplinary action including expulsion relative to

student No. 401009 and 20O!22.
2. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel lssue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,

resignation, dísmissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.
3. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the Distríct's Labor Negotiator,

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.
4. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing lítigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.
5. Conference with Reol Property Negotiotors. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-0L5-000). Agency Negotiator:
Jeremy Powell, SuperintendenU Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: Westermann
Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out oct¡on token in closed session:.íchool Board regording student number 4274 (200122) chose to uphold
expulsíon. May re-apply spring. 4-0 vote. Mr. Boone abstained. Student 4778 (401009) moy re-enroll sturcing 9/3.
4-0 vote. Mr. Boone obstained.
Start: 5:30pm
PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE: Lead by Rod Boon

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) Wendall made a motion to adopt the agenda. Boone 2nd. Motion carried

Lower: AYE

AYE

7.0 COMMUNTCATTONS/REPORTS: 
\t. Board Member Comments/Reports. Reyes gave thanks for the volleyballs and thanks for the time and effort of

the HES Cafeteria and the 8th grade meetings. Also, thanks to Mrs. Perry and Mr. Campbell.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports

a. Hamilton High School, Giovanni Martinez - Our 3rd annual Quad day on 8/22 was a success. We are
gearing up for the 1st football game 9/6. AII are invited to cheer on first game at Biggs Friday.

Leal: AYE

Boone: AYE

Odom: AYE

247


